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VISHWANAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: Bellad-Bagewadi, TaIuka-Hukkeri,

District-Belgau m-591 305, Kamataka

Phone: 083&251251, email: urfo@vsil.co. in
CIN: UE5110KA1995P LCm77 n

Website:www.vsil.co.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 23.d Armual Ceneral Meeting of the members of Vishwaraj Sugar

Industries Limited will be held on Thursday,2Tr September,2018 at 4.m P.M. at the Registered

Office of the Company situated at Bellad-Bagewatl i, Taluka-HuKieri, Distrir"-t-Belgaum-91305,

Karnataka to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receivg consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statemmts as at 31"i March 2018 and the

report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in the place of lvlr. Lava Katti (DIN: V2fiKA) who retires by rotation and

berng eligrble, offurs himself for r*appointrnent

3. To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Kush Katti (DIN: W777891who retires by rotation and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

.4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution

as an Ordinary Resolutiott'. -

"RESOLVED THAT purzuant to the provisions of Section 14ti and all other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, and as amended from

time to time, and such other permissions as may be necessary, the remuneration Rs.1,50,000/-

(Rupees One Lakh And Fifty Thousand Onlv) plus applicable Tares and reimbursement of out

of pocket expenses at actuals to M/s. S. K. Tikare & Co, Cost Accountant who were appointed

bv the Board of Directors of the Companv, upon the rccommendation of Audit Committee, as

"Cost Auditors" to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for

Financial Year ending 31"t lvlarch,2019, be and is hereby ratified and approved."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikhil Katti, Managing Director of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary desirable or expedient to give effect

to this resolution"

5. To consider and if thought fit, to past with or without modification(s), the following resolutiorl
as a Special Resohttiotr: -

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 196, 1,97,203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of ivltrnagerial personnel) Rules,2014;md schedule V to the Act (including any statutory
modification(s) or r+.enactments thereof for the time being in force), the re-appointnrcnt of Mr.



Lava Ramesh Katti (DIN: O27n164\, as the Whole.time Director of the Companv for a period of
3 years w.e.f 30.06.2fr18 at a remuneration of Rs.2.00 Lacs per month, by the Board of Directors,

as approvect by the Nomination and Remuneration Cornrnittee, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to increase or decrease

the overall remuneration subiect to the maximum limit of Rs.2.S0lacs per month or make any

variation(s), alteration(s), addition(s), deletion(s),to the aforementioned remuneration structure,

as it rnay deem fit and proper, during the currencv of tenure of Mr. l-ava Ram€sh Katti (DIN:

U2m1&), as the Whole-time Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER TIIAT the aforesaid remuneration shall be construed as mrnimum

remuneration in the absence of profits/ inadequacv of profits, except that the overall

remuneration including perquisites wlll be restricted to the maximum permrssible as per

fthedule V of the Act arrd that no Commission will be paid.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby

authorised to vary, alter or modify the terms and conditions of his appointment including
remuneration, commission and/or perquisites payable or to he provided (including any

monetary value thereof) to him in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of
Directors and Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti.

RESOLVED RIRTHER TIIAT lvlr. Nikhil Katti, Managing Director be and is hereby

authorised to take all steps necessary for giving effect to this resolution."

6. To consider and if thought fit, to past with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Reso/zfiolr: -

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section '196, 197,203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Reruneration
of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 and schedule V to the Act (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the tinle tring in force), the re-appointnEflt of lvlr.

Kush Ramesh Katti (DlN: O2m789), as the Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of
3 years w.e.f 30.06.2018 at a remuneration of Rs.2.00 Lacs per month, by the Board of Directors,
as approved by the Nomrnation ard Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FLJRTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to incr€ase or decrease

the overall remuneration su$ect to the maximum timit of Rs.2.50lacs per month or make any

variation(s), alteration(s), addition(s), deletion(s),to the aJorementioned remuneration structure,

as it may deem fit and proper, during the currency of tenure of Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti (DIN:

U27V79), as the Wholetime Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FLJRTHER THAT the aforesaid remuneration shall be construed as minimum
remuneration in the absence of profits/ inadequacy of profits, except that the overall
remuneration including perquisites will be restricted to the maximum permissible as per

Schedule V of the Act and that no Comnxssion will be paid.

RESOLVED FLJRTHER THAT the Boarrl of Directors of the Company be and are hereby

authorised to vary, alter or modify the terms and conditions of his appointment including

remuneration, commission and/or perquisites payable or to be provided (including any

monetary value thereof) to him in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of

Directors and Mr. Kush Ramesh.



RESOLVED FURTHER TIIAT Mr. Nikhil Katti, Managing Director be and is here\
authorised to take all steps necessary for giving effect to this resolution."

81, Order of the Board of Director
For Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: 28.08.2C[ 8

sdl-
Umesh Vishwanath Katfi

Chairman
DIN:01i161050

341, Town/vill: Bellad Bagewadi

Ttrluk: Hukkeri Belgaum 591305

Karnataka, lndia

l. The statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of tlrc Compranies Act, 2013 with repect to the sJrr ial husiness

sot out in the nol.icc is annexed.

2. A memher errtitled to attend and vote at th(' Amual Ceneral Mrctin1; ("AGM") is entitk'd kr apprrint a

proxy to attend and votc on a Poll instead of himv'lf/hersclf and the proxy need not k'a mt'mber o( the

Company.

3. Proxies, if any, in order to bc effctive, must be rect:ived at the Company's Registered Offict' r'rot later than
-ltl (Forty-Eight) hours before the time fixcd for holding thc merting. During the peri<xJ hrginning 24

hours before the Limc fixed for th+, commt,ncement of the meetinll, and cnding with [he rrrnclusion o[ the

meetin& a memt'or would be entitled t() inspe(:t the proxies lodgpd at any time during lhc husiness hours

of the Company, provided not less than thrce days of advance noticc in writing is given to thc Company.
.1. A person L-alr acl as a proxy on behalf of momtprs not exceeding fifty and holding in thc ag,g,regate ntrt

morc'than ten percent o[ the total shart'capital of the Companv carrying voting rights. A memk'r holding

morc than ten Ferccnt of the btal sharo capilal of the Company cdrrying voting rights may .rpFx)int a

single person as pnrxy and such Jrerson shall not act as a prcxy for any other ;x'rscrn or sharcholder.

5. The reguircnrcnt to place the matter relating k, appointment of Auditors for ratification hy memhers at

every Annual Gcncral Meeting is done away u'ith vide mrtification dated May 7, a)18 issut'd by the

Ministry of Corp()rate Affairs, Nt'w Dclhi. Accordingly, no rexrlution is proposed for ratification of
appointment of Auditors. M/s.Goianur & Co, Charlered Accountant$, (hcaring Registration No. (ID941S)

shall continue b hold the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company till the conclusion o[ the Twenty

Seventh Annual Gcneral Meeting.

6. Memtrrs arc rtquested to bring their aatendanre slip along with their copy of Annual Report k) the

Meehng.

7. CorForatc Mt'mhcrs are requeskrd to send a duly r:crtifie.rd trut, copv of thc B<>ard Resolutkrns/ .ruthoritv,
authorizing their rep(scntative(s) to attend and vote at the MeetinU.

8. Thc statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies AcL 2)13 with respect t() thc spu ial business

set out in the r()tic<' is anntxed.
9. ln compliance with *)cLion 108 of thc Companies Act, 2013 rt'ad with Rule Zl of Lhc Companies

(Management and Administration) Rukrs, a)14, the Company is phascd to providc thc fatilitv of remote

e-voting to all momhers. Compleh instructions on e-voting facility providcd hy the Company are

provided hereunder. Such remote t-voting fatility is in addition to voting that mav tak' plat! at the

Mt,eting venuc on 27h Sepkrmher, 201E.

10. The Register of Dirtxtors'and Key Mana11'rial Personnel and thefu Shareholding nraintaint'd under
Section 

.170 
of tho Companies Act, 2013 and Rogisk r of contracts and arrangements in which Dircctors are

interested mainLain('d under s€rtion 189 of the Act will he availahkr for insPection hy the mt'mtr:rs at the

Annual General Me.eting.

11. ln ctse of ioint holderc attending the Meeting only such ioint holder who is higher in the ordcr of names
will be entitk d to votc.

N OTES:



12. Memtrers may avail the nomination facilitv as provided under Se,t tiorr 72 of the Companies Acl 2013.

13. Memhers are requested to notify any chang, in their address.

14. Any member proF)sing to seek,rny clarifir:ation on the accoqnls is requested to send the queries to the

Company at its rel,,istered office at least *'v+,n days prior to tlre date of Antrual General Mecting to enable

the manag,emenl to cornpile the relevant inf()rmati$ to reply thc same in the meeting.
.15. 

Relevant documenls referred to in the d(companying N()tice, art: opcn for inspection by tht: members at

the Registered Officc of tlre C-ompany on all working days durinli busirurss hours up to the date of the

Mecting.

16. Pumuant to Artirlcs of Assrriatiorr of tho Conrpdny, Mr. [-ava Rarrrth Katti, and Mr. Kush Ranrtth Katti,

Whole Time Dir(\ k)rs, retke by rotation and treing cligible offer thcmstlves for re-apprintm<,nt.
.17. 

Route map and promincnt land mark for easy location oI thc vcnut' of the Meeting are attached herewith

in terms oI Se(rctarial Standiuds 2 (S92).

J;i.';iHi i?:+s$ 
v i*ar r. s rir'rr !
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ANNfrURETO NOTICE
STATEMENT OF MATERTAL FACTS PURSUANT TO SECTTON 1m(1) OF THE COMPANTES

ACT,2013

AGENDA - 4

APPROVAL, CONSIDERATION AND RATITICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST
AUDITOR

The lvlinistrv of Corporate Affairs has issued Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Amendment Rules

2014 which inh:r alia warrants the mamtenance of cost records in respect of the sugar production,
Co-generation and Distillery activity of the Company. In compliance with the said rules and based

on the recommendation of Audit Commitee, the Board has re.appointed M/s. S K Tikare & Cq
Cost Auditors to audit the cost records of the Company at a remunetahon of Rs.1,50,00/- for the
financial year 201&19 subject to the approval of members.

Accordingly, the resolution as stated in the Notice is commended for approval of the members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned

or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

AGENDA - 5

RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. LAVA RAMESH FGTTI (DIN: o2Tnr&) AS WHOLE-TIMB
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPAI{Y

Tlre tenure of lvl r. Lava Katti as Whole-time Diret'tor of the Company expired on June 29, 2018.

Pursuant to recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, the
Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on June 29, 201& have re.appointed lvlr.

Lava Katti as the Whole-time Director of the Company w. e. f. June 3O, ?o18 tor a further period of
3(three) years. This is subiect to the approval of the shareholders at this Annual Ceneral Meeting.

The details of remuneration payable to Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti and the terms and conditions of the
re-appointment are given below:

Period:

3 years w.e.f June 30, 2018 su bjrt to a notice period 3 (three) months from either side for
termination of services.

Remuneration:
An amount not exceeding Rs. e00,m0/ - (Rupees Two Lakhs only) per month inclusive of
perquisites detailed below which would be eligible for revision on a date to be determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee with subsequent approval by the Board from time to
time.

Perquisites
. Perquisites and allowance will include house maintenance allowimce together with

reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities as electricity, security, maintenance,
staff salary etc.

r Reimbursement of expenses pertaining to electricity, gas, water, telephone and other
reasonable expenses for the upkeep and rnaintenance ir respect of such accommorjation.

o Leave and encashment of leave - as per the policy of the Company.
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Gratuity and / or contribution to the Gratuity Fund of Company - as applicable to other

officers of the Company and as per the policy of the Companv

Other Allowances / benefits, perquisites - any other allowances, benefits and perquisites as

per the Rules applicable to the S€nior Executives of the Company and / or which mav

become applicable in the future and / or any other allowance, perquisites as the Board may

from time to time decide.

The following perquisites shall not be included in the computation of remuneration stated

above:

a. Cratuity ils per rules of the Con'rpany (which shall not exceed one haU month's Salary for

each completed year of servit'e);

b. Eamed leave with full pay or encashmott as per rules of the Company.

c. Contribution towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund,

National Pmsion Scheme, to the extent not taxable under [ncome Tax Act, 1961

d. Provision for use of the Company's car for official dutres and telephone at residence

(including payment for local calls and long distance official calls trut excluding long

distance personal calls to be paid by Managing Director) shall not be included in the

computation of perquis ites.

For the purpose of calculation of remuneration, perquisites shall be evaluated as per lncome Tax

Rules, wherever applicable.

OTHER TERIVIS & CONDITIONS OFAPPOINTMENT: -

In the event of any loss or inarlequacy of profits in anv financial year during his tenure, the

Company shall pay Mr. Lava Katti, the remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, commission

or any other allowarces ers specifietl above and in accordance with the limits specified under the

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory mo<lifications or rs€nactments thermf, for the

time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Govemment from time to

time in this regard, as minimum remuneration.

Mr. Lava Kafti shall be liable to retire by rotation.

The terrns as set out rn the explanatory statement may be treated as the terms of appointrnent of Mr.

Lava Katti under Section 190 of the Comparies Act 2013.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem No. 5 for the approval of the Members.

Except Mr. Lava Katti, Mr. Kush Katti, Mr. Nikhil Katti and Mr. Umesh Katti none of the other

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concemed or

interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution as set out at Item No.5. Further, the copy

of Employment Agrement srtered into with Mr. Lava Katti shall be available for inspection by

members at the Registered Office of the Company dunng business hours, on all working days till
27.09.2018.

Annexure A

lnformation pursuant to clause 1.25 of Secretarial Standard 2 (S92) issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of lndia

Name of Director: Lava Ramesh Katti

DIN 0277716t

Erpcrir.m c On thc Botrd of Vishwaraj Sug,ar Industries Limitcd

sinr' 2013. Experienced in administrating distillery

and trt-11t'nerdti()n uni[s of the Vishwaral Supl

C)

I



Industries Limited. Also part of social works in this
region of Hu-kkeri ,Taluka and surrounding villagcs.

Serving on the advisory pancl of a century old
Iindncial institution na ed Prathamika Krishi Patin

Sahakari Sangh Limited, Bellad Bagewadi u,hich
caters to the nccds of thousands of Farnlers. Also
involved in various social activitics throug,h Rahul
Katti sgrrts and sr^--ial club.

Terms of conditions ef Appointmena As menl.iorLd in empk)ymc'nl agreement
Dehils of Rt-mum)ration $ought to be paid Basic pay is Rs. 21,00,0fi)/-p.a

l,ast Renr uneral.ion Drawn Basic pay is Rs. 21,([),000/-p.a

Shareholding He holds 120028 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Rr:lationship n ith other Director / KMPs His brother Mr. Kush Katti is Whole time Director

Number o[ meetings of thc Board attended during
thc year

N inc

Otlrcr Diectorships Vishwarai Encivil India Private Limited
Membership / Chairmanship oI Committees of
other Boards

NIL

AGENDA - 6

RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. KUSH RAMESH KATTI (DIN: 02m189) AS WHOLE-TIME
DIRECTOROFTHE COMPANY

The tenure of Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti as l,1y'hole-time Director of the Comp;rny expired on June 29,

Pursuant to recommsrdation of Nomination and Remuneration Commtttee of the Company, the

Board of Drectors of the Company, at their meehng held on June 29, n18, have re-appointed Mr.
Kush Ramesh Katti as the Whole.time Director of the Company w. e. f. June 30, zJ18 for a further
period of 3 (three) years. This is sub.iect to the approval of the shareholders at this Annual General

Meeting.

The details of remuneration payable to Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti and the terrns and conditions of the
re-appointment are given below:

Period:

3 years w.e.f June 30, 2018 subject to a notice period 3 (three) months from either side for
termination of services.

Remuneration:
An amount not exceeding Rs. 2,m,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs only) per month inclusive of
perquisites detailed below which would be eligibie for revision on a date to be determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Commrttee with subsequent approval by the Board from time to
time.

F Perquisites
. Perquisites and allowance will include house maintenance allowance together with

reimbursement of expqlses or allowances for utilities as electricity, security, maintenance,
staff salary etc.

o Reimbursement of exporses pertaining to electricity, gas, water, telephone and other
reasollable expenses for the upkeep and naintenance in respett of such accornmodahon.

r L€ave and encashm$t of leave - as per the policy of the Company.
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Gratuity and / or contribution to the Gratuity Fund of Company - as applicable to other

officets of the Company and as per the policy of the Company

Other Allowances / benefits, perquisites - any other allowances, benefits and perquisites as

per the Rules applicable to the knior Executives of the Company and / or which mav

become applicable in the future and / or any other allowance, perquisites as the Board may

ftom time to time decide.

The following penquisites shall not be includecl in the computation of remureration stated

above:

e. Craruity as per rules of the Company (which shall not exceed one half month's Salary for

each completed year of service);

f, Eamed leave with full pay or encashment as per rules of the Company.

t. Contribution towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund,

National Pension kheme, to the extqlt not taxable under lncome Tax Act 1961.

h. Provision for use of the Company's car for official duties and telephone at residslce

(including payment for local calls and long distance official calls but excluding long

distance personal calls to be paid by Managing Director) shall not be included in the

computation of perquisites.

For the purpose of calculation of remuneration, perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax

Rules, wherever appl icabte.

OTHER TERMS & CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT: -

In the event of any loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during his tenure, the

Company shall pay Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti, the remuneration by way of salary, pequisites,

commission or any other allowances as specified above and in accordance with the limits

specified under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any stahrtory mod ifications or re.

enactments thereof, for the time being in force) or zuch other limits as may be prescribed by the

Govemment from time to tinre in this regard, as minimum rerrnmeration.

Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti shall be liable to retrre by rotation.

The terms as set out in the explanatory statement may be treated as the terms of the appointment of
Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti under Section 

-190 
of the Companies Act 2013.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem No. 6 for the approval of the Members.

Except Mr. Kush Katti, Mr. Lava Katti, Mr. Nikhil Katti and Mr. Umesh Katti, none of the other

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concemed or

interested, finamcially or otherwise, in the said resolution as set out at Item No.6. Further, the copy

of Employment Agreement entercd into with Mr. Kush Katti shall be available for inspection by

members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours, on all working days till
D.@.20,8.

Annexure A

lnformation purcuant to clause 1.25 of Secretarial Standard 2 (S92) issued by the lnstitute of

Company Secretaries of lndia

Nmre of Directoi Kush Ramesh Katti
DIN 4777189

Expt rit'nco Serve.d on the Board of Vishwarai Sug,ar [ndustrk's

Lirnitcd since 2013 and actively ass<x iated with

o



Bcllad Bagcwadi Urban Souhard Bank loca tt'd in
Bellad Bagewadi. Also administrating Shri V. M.

Katti Educational Trust, which includes primary,
secondary, PU collcgt'and ITI colleges. Also t0rrdurls
s$ial activiti(ls through Rahul Katti Sports and lrial
Club

Torms of t ond iIions oI Appointment As mcntioncd in employment agreement

DeLails o[ Rcnrunt'r.rtion sought to k, paid Basi(: F\ry is Rs. 2.1,0O,[D/-p.a

Ldst Romun('r.rti()n Drawn Basit pay is Rs. 2{,tD,0|0/-p.a
Sharchold inli Hc holds 1245075 Equity Sharcs o[ Rs.l0 each

Relationship rvith otht'r Dtector / KMPs His brothcr Mr. Lava Katti is Wholc time Dir( tor

Numlrcr of nrcctings of thc Board attended during
lhc year

Nim'

Ol.hcr Dirctkrrships Vishn'araj Errivil lndia Private Limited
Memlrt'rship / Chairmanship of Committccs ()f

otlror Br.rards

NIL

By Order of the Board of Director

For Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

Place: Bellad Bagewadi

Date: 28.08.2018

sd/-
Umesh Vishwanath Katti

Chairman
DIN:0146i050

341, Town/ vill: Bellad Bagewadi

Taluk: Hukkeri Belgaum 591305

Karnataka, Ind ia
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E-VOTING

The busincss as set oul in thc Noticc may be trarrsar:t(ld thr(,ul]h ck\ln)ni( v()tinli sysknn and thc Conrpany is

providing facility for voting hy <'k'ctrorric mcans. PursuanI t() th(' pr()visi()ns o[ 9r tion 1(Il ()f the C()mPdni('s

Ar:1,2013, road with the Companit's (Manatfmcnt .r!rd Adminisl.rdtiorr) Ruk's, n)1d tht'Company is pleast'd

to offer e-voting facility as an al[ernatc to its members t() (]dst th(fir votcs t'k'r tnrnir:ally on all rcsrllutions set

forth in the Notir:e convr.ning the 23'r Annual Gcrrcral Mcoting. Thc Companv has orgagcd the scrvicts of

Central Depository g.rvi.(':i lndia Limik{ (CDSL) kr pnrvidc thc c-votin1,, facili[y.

The Memhers whose nanes appear in the Register of lvlemhers as on XIh Scptcmher 2018 (cut-off dale) are

entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth in this Noti(e.

The evoting period will cornmence on Monday, 24th September, 2018 (0C0O hrs) and will end on

Wednesday, 26h September, 2Of8 (17:ffi hrs). During, this period, shart'holdcrs of the Conrpany holding

shares as on the cut<r[I dakr rnay tast their vott' ekrtnrnically. Thc e-votinl;, m<xlule shall h disahted hy

CDSL for voting thert'aftcr. Memlx'rs will not [1(' .rhle k) cast th(,ir vo[('s (,1(,( tr)ni(.rlly tx:y()nd the date & tim('

mentioned above.

The Company has apprinted Mr. Sudht'ndra ftalash Chali, Pra( tisinl,, Conrpany I'cretary to a( t as

S{rutiniz-er [o condu( t and rrtrlinizc lhe r.kl trrni voting, prot t'ss and ntll at tht Annual Gem'ral Mtttiny, in

a fair and transparenl manncr. Thc memtxrrs dcriirinS t() vot(' thr(rugh ol(\ tr()ni( mrxle may rcft'r to the

detailed procedure on e-voting giv(ln tx,rounder.

PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING:

Inetmctions for members for voting elecbonically are as und€r:

(i) The shareholders should log on b the e-voting wl- b6ite www.evotingindia.tom.
(ii) Click on "Shareholders" tab.

(iii) Now Enter your User lD
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL;8 Character DP ID followed hy 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should entpr Folio Numk)r registered with tkr Company.

(iv) Next, entcr the Imag,e Verilication as displayed and Click on Login.

(v) If you are holding sharcs in dcmat form and had logg,ed on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an

earlier voting of any company, then your cxisting password is kr trc usr-'d.

(vi) If you are a first time user, follow the ste;n 1;iven below:

P,AN Enter your L0 digit alpha-numeric PAN issuod by ln<:ome Tax Depdrtmcnt
. Mcmhcrs who have not updahd their PAN with tlx'ComPdny/D('Fository Parti.iPant are

rtqutsted to use tk) first M1) lctters of thoir namo and the 8 di1its of thc srtluenct: numher in

the PAN fit'ld.(l-lrr xqtencc rumfur for tltosc mcmkrs who tlid not ufiate PAN, slall be Totided in

a separate sheet along toith tlu Annual Reprtl
. ln cdse thc soquence numher is kss than 8 diSits (!nt('r thr: applkahh number of Us be(ore

the numher alter thc first two (haracters of th(l namt: in CAPITAL lettcrs. Eg. If your name is

Ramesh Kumar with scquemt numk'r 1 then entcr RA0(X{D(X)1 in thc PAN field.

Dividend
Bank Details

Enter thc Ddt('of Birtlr as rt:rtrdt'd in your dt'nral ar'e()un[ ()r in thc Company rer'ords for the

said denrat at t outrl or ftrlirr in drl/mrn/yyyy fornrat.

Enkrr thc Dividend Bank Details as reeorded in your dcmdt ac(ount or in the Company

retr>rds f<rr thc said dt'mat act:ount or folio.
. Plcase entu thc DOB or Dividend Bank Details in ordcr k> lo1,,in. If thc dr-'Lails are not

re.torrled with the deJrosilory or Company plt'asc enktr t.hc mcmh'r lD / ftrlb numtx)r in [he

Dividt'nd Bank dctails ficld as rlcntioncd irr irrstruetron (iii).

(vii) Afbr entering these details approPriatcly, elick on "SU BM tT" tah.

(viii) Members will then dirtx tly reach Lho Gll pany selection sr:ru:tt.

(ix) For Memk'rs holding shares in physi('at form, the dcLails can h' usod only for t'voting on the resolulions

contained in this Notice.
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(x) Click on tho EVSN for the relevemt Company, i.e., Viahwarai Sugar Induslriee Limited on whi< h you
ch(rcse to v()t('.

(xi) On thc voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DE$RIPTION" and against the samc th(' ()ption
"YES/NO" for votinS. Select the option YES c)r NO as tlesircd. Tho ()ption YES implies that yotr assenl t() thc
Rexrlution and option NO implies that you disscnt to thc Rt solutir.rn.

(xii) Clir k on tho "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish [o view lhe entire Resolution details.
(xiii) After s('ltting the resolution you have decided t() v()l('on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation trrx will
he displaytd. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", elsc to ehange your vote, click orr "CANCEL"
ancl at trrdinllly modify your vote-

(xiv) Oncc you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not he allowed to modily your vok'.
(xv) You can also take out print of the voting donc hy you by tlicking on "Click here to prirrt" option on Lhc

Votinll pal]('.

(xvi) Notc for Non - lndividunl Shareholders and Cusk.ldians

o Non-lndividual sharcholders (i.c. othcr than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Cusl.orli.rn .rrt'

r(quirod k) logon to www.cvoting,ind id.( om dnd rcgistor thcmselves as CorJrorak'.

A x:anned copy of the Registration Fornr hearing the stamp and sign of thc cntil.y should ht'

emailed to hclpdosk.('\'()tinrl!/.1 clsl i ncl i.i ( i'nl
. After recaiving the login details a compliarrce uscr skruld he creal.ed using ttx,'admin log,in and

password. The compliarre user n'ould he able to link tlre account(s) for which they wish to vote

on.

. The list of accounts should be mailerl to tx'lpdesk.evoting@dslindia.com and on approval o[ the

acrcunts tlrey would be able to c?st tht: ir v()1.(!.

. A ranned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issurd in
favour of thc Custodian, iI any, should tr uploded in PDF format in the system for thc

scrutinizcr to vori$ the same.

(xvii) ln cast' you have any queries or issues regarding e-v()ling/ you may refer the Frrquently Asked

Questions ("FA$") and e'-voting manual availabk: at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or writc dn

cmail to h.lpclr.sk.ovotin,i(ltdslindid.(1)m.

General:

Thc votinli rights of Members shall h in proJnrtion to the sharr'..; hcld by them in the paid-up cquity share

capital of thc Company as on 2Oh September, 2017.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion o[ voting at the ACIvL first count the votes cdst dt the

Mceting, thcreaftcr unblock the votes (?st th(rugh renrol.r' c-voting in the presence of at least 2 witnesses rx)t

in the (lmpbyment of the Company and make not latcr than 3 days of conclusion of thc M(\'ting .t

consolidate.d A-rutinizerrs Report of the total vo[es cast in favour or against, if;ury, to the Chairman or a

;x'rson authorisod hy him in writing wlx) shall countersign the same and declare the result of voting,

forthwith.

Mcmkrrs who do not have access to remote e-votirrg facilil.y have kr{]n additionally providrd the facility of
voting by way of Ballot Form. They may send duly complcted Ballot Form (enclosed r,r,ith the Annual Rcport)
to tht' &:rutinizlr, Mr. Sudheenclra Prakash Ghali, Practising, Company *lletary (M. No.Z)37), at tho
Rqisl.ered Offir e of the Compqny so as to reat h ttfore [lr trrnclusion of the a3.d Annual Cener.rl N,lecting or
can carry lhe same to the Annual Glneral Meel.inll dnd deFmsit in the Ballot Box during the N,lecting. Thc
facility ftr voting shall also be made available at the Mrx'ting and members attending the meeting who havc
not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall he abk' kr cxercise their right at the Mr:ehng. Tht' menrbcrs

who havc cast tht'ir vote hy remote e-voting prior l.o thr murting may also attend the meeting but slrall rrot tr.
entitled to cast Lh('ir vote again.

A mt'nttrr r. an opl. for only one mode of votinly i.c., r.itht,r throullh r(!mo[e e-votinq or by Ballot. If a mcmtx'r
casts vok's hy both modes, thcn voting donc throul,,h n'motc r'-voting shall prcvail and Ballot shall tr troak.d
as invalid.

Memhers have lhc option to request for physical copy of Ballot Form by sending an e-nail to itr(,., ! '.;i ( (,.i1

by m('nlioning thoir Folio / DP ID and Client ID

The results declared along with the Scrutiniz€r's RefDrt h,ill be grsted on the Company's website
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Additional Disclosure in terms of Section Il of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

rn r€iation to Item Nos.S and 6

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Nature of Industry Manufacturing of Sugar, Co-generation, Distillery. Vinegar and allied

products

Date of

commencement of

commercial operation

The Company was incorporated in the year 1995 and obtained

certificate of Commencement of Business in the vear '1999.

Financial Performance

Financial parameters:

Tumover (operational

revenue)

Net profit after tax

Amount of dividend

paid

Rate of dividend

declared

mL7-78

(audited)

m1G17

(audited)

(Rs. in lakhs)

m1$16
(auditecl)

24101.7"r819 244-t6577@ 23550.20335

(312.8s889) 877.g8r';C,l. 441 .45793

345.56

(FV iol-) (FV10/-)
10%

(FV 10/-)

Forcign Investments

or collaborations NA

II. INFORI{ATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE

Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti Mr- Kush Ramesh Katti

Background

Details

lr4r. Lava Ramesh Kaui (3-l years) is

a Promoter and Wholetime Director

of the Company. He takes personal

inter€st in developing teams with a

strong belief that ordinary people

are capable of making things

possible. As Wholetime Director of
the company he carries the overall

responsibility for the strategy and

operations of the Company.

Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti (31 years) is a

Promoter and Wholetime Director of
the Company. He takes personal

interest in developing tearns with a

strong belief that ordinary people are

capable of making things possible. As

Wholetime Director of the company

he carries the overall responsibility

for the strategy and operations of the

Company.

Past

remuneration

(Rs per annum)

2017-18

201G17

Rs.24lacs

Rs.23lacs

Rs. 24Lacs

Rs.23lacs
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Job profile and

his suitability

As the Wholetime Director of the

Company he handles the overall

responsibility for the strategy and

operations of the CompanV

As the Wholetime Director of the

Company he handles the overall

responsibility for the strategy zrrd

operations of the Company

Remuneration

proposed

Rs.2 lacs per month with maximum

ceiling limit of Rs. 250 lacs per

month

Rs.Zacs per month with maximum

ceiling limit of Rs. 2.50 lacs per

month

Comparative

remuneration

profile with

respect to

ind ustry, size of

the Company,

profile of the

position and

person.

Taking into consideration the size of

the Company, the qualification and

experience of Mr. Lava Ranresh

Katti and the profile being handled

by him. the remuneration as

mentioned above is on the

conservative side as compared to

the remuneration being paid to
similar position in other Companies.

Taking into consideration the size of

the Company and the qualification

and experience of Mr. Kush Ramesh

Katti, and profile being handled by

him, the renruneration as mentiorred

above is on the conservative side as

compared to the remuneration being

paid to similar position in other

Companies.

Pecrrniary

relationship

dira:tly or

indirectly n'ith

the Company,

or relationship

with the

managerial

personnelif any.

ln addition to the remuneration

drawn by and proposed to Mr. Lava

Ramesh Katti, he has qrtered into

transaction with the Company

aggregating to Rs.216 lacs as on

31.03.2018 towards Cane purchase

and has indirect pruniary

relationship with the company

during the FY 2017-18:

Name : Kush Ramesh Katti

Relation: Brother

Nature of Payment:

Salary: 24 lacs

Name : Nikhil Unresh Katti

Relation: Fathels Brother's Son

Nature of Payment:

Salary: 36 lacs

Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti is brother of

Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti. the

Wholetime Director of the Company

ln addition to the remuneration

drawn by and proposed to Mr. Kush

Ramesh Katti, he has entered into

transaction $,ith the Company

aggregating to Rs.22.39 lacs as on

31.03.2018 towards Cane purchase

and has indirect pecuniarv

relationship with the company

during the FY 2017-18:

Name : Lava Ramesh Katti

Relation: Brother

Nature of Payment:

Salary: 24 lacs

Name : Nilhil Unrcsh Katti

Relation: Fathe/s Brother's Son

Nature of Payrnent:

Salary: 36 lacs

Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti is brother of

N{r. Lava Ramesh Katti, the

Wholetime Director of the Company

III. OTHER INFORMATION

Reasons of loss

or inadequacy of

profits

The Company's business comprises of sales of various products. Due to low

margins at domestic level and uncertain global economy, the Company could

not generate expected revenues and eventual profitability.
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Steps takor or

proposed to be

taken for

improvemort

To overcome the prment economic situation the Company has, inter alia,

taken following steps:

. The Company is exploring new markets/buyers in the Domestic

markets to increase the sales.

o The Company has taken various initiatives to save on the cost so as to

improve the profit margin

o The Companv has taking new initiatives to develop domestic

business.

Expected

increase in

productivity and

profits

The Company is targeting an increase of N% in the overall tumover and

about 5-10% increase in operating profits as compared to previous year.

N, DISCLOSURES:

Details of

proposed

Remuneration

Cross Remuneration

Rs.2400,000/ -p.a

Drawn Cross Remuneration Drawn

Rs.24,00,ffi/-p.a

The Explanatory statement together with the accompanying notice may also be regarded as

an abstract of the Memorandum of interest of Directors under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members.

Your Dircctors are pleased to prcssnt Twenty Third Annual Report of .vow Companl together $ith thc
Auditod Financial Slatcments lor thc hnancial year ended 31" MarclL 2018 and on the state of affairs of the

Companr'.

Summary of financial results:
The Companl"s Financial Pcrformancc for the financial vear ended on 3["'March. 2018 under rerier along
s ith previous l ear figures are givcn hereundo:

Rs.

VSIL's performance during 201 7-1 8:

Thc Compa4 has preparcd the Financial Statements undcr Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) for the first
timc. The details of larious adjustmcnls to the Financial Statement neccssitated from such implementation

have bccn covered in thc Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts.

During the 1,ear undo consideratior\ vour Company had an operational turnover of Rs. 22181.35 lakhs as

against Rs. 28401.74 lakhs in previors vear depicting a decline rats of 21.9tr/o rcsulting in Net loss of Rs.
(312.86) lakhs.

However, during the year undo review, other expcnscs increased to Rs, ll13.98 Lacs as compared to Rs.

920.96 Lacs in the preceding financial Year.

With the aforesaid poformance in thc hindsight and reasonable gmd sugarcanc harvest in thc ensuing 1cars.
your Company is spirited to record better results in the ensuing Financial Years.

Business Operations:
Thc cpcrational data of the Company for the last trvo sugar scasons and financial ycars arc as tmder:

Particulars 201 7-20 r 8 2016-2011

'fotal Income
2,314,6t 5.684.67 2,850,736,6t 3.69

Profit before Finrncc cost and Dcprcciation
350.921.3 13.92 477.657.8 t5.93

Deprcciation & Amortiiatron erpense
131.996.304.86 I 1.53..17.353.(r9

Profit Before Tax
r 0582.129.40 r I .38.78.120.(H

Tax Erpense
4l-868-019 00 26.089.716.00

Net Profit After Tax
(31,285,889.60) 8.77.88.404.04

Other courprehcnsil e income 0.00 0.00

Tourl Comprehensile income
(31.285.889.60) 8,77,88.,10.1.04

Basic& dilutcd Earnings per Sharc (Rs.) () et) 254

Partic ulars Sugar season

2017- 18 2016-17
Sugarcanc crushed (in MT) 506 t25.39 3 1068 L402
Sugar ploduced 1in quintals) 734050 321700
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Segment-wise performance and outlook:
Sugar:

Thc sugar sescn 2017-18 started with a carry-foru ard stock of 448532 quintals of sugar and perccptiorr of
lowo production due to shortage of cane output in the region. Sugarcale crushed during the year stood at

506125.39MT as comparcd to 3.10,681.40MT in the prel'ious vear. Recovery increased to I l.l3 as compared

to 10.35 achieved during thc prcvious year oBing to weathcr conditions lr,hich wcre completely conducive.

The Compan-v is providing farmers with necessar] agri-inputs for increasing lhcir larm -"..ields and improving

clean canc quality. Steps havc also been taken !o educatc canc grorvers on modern agricultural practices.

During the vear undcr rcvieu'- vour Companl sold 489861 quinlals of sugar at an avcrage realisation of Rs.

35. I I per kilogram as against 663526 quintals at an avcrage realisation of Rs. 32. l2 pcr kilogam in the FY

20t6-t7.

Vinegar:

Production of Vinegar dunng the year stood at 84.60.314 ltrs as compared to 40.98.000 ltrs in the previous

year. During the year the Company sold 9l -79.160 ltrs at an average realization of Rs l257.58lakhs as against

51.61,600 ltrs at an average rcalization of fu. 713.99 taL:hs.

Distillen,

o The production of Rectificd Spirit during the lear rvas lorvered to .5563.50 KL as compared to 8838.18

KL in the previous vear. During the _vear undo rsvicrr. r'our Companl sold l8l0 KL at an average

realization of Rs.8l2. l0 Lacs as against 6886 KL at an avcragc realization of Rs. 2.547.26 Lacs.

o The production of Natural Spirit during tre 1'ear was 1192.62 KL as comparcd to 2269.08 KL in the

previots 1'ear. During thc ycar thc Company sold 926 KL at an avoage realization olRs. 131.40 Lacs as

against 1450.00 KL at an avcragc rcalization olRs. 8r.44.47 Lacs rn the pro'ious 1car.
. The Foduction olM.G. Spirit during thc year was lowcred to 47.63KL as compared to 89.27 KL in the

previous vear. During thc vcar vour Companl' sold 50 KL at an average realization of Rs.l3 Lacs as

against 90.00 KL at an avcrage realization of Rs. 30.50 Lacs in thc pro ious 1ear.
o During the year 201(>17 your compan) sold Liquid Carbon droide of 30.15.080KG at an average

reailsation of Rs.i0. l5 Lacs as against 34,57.620 KG at an average reailsation of Rs. 69.15 Lacs in the

prel'ious 1'ear.

IML
Duc to lower production ol sugarcanc dwing this pcriod there was scarciry ol raw material, molasscs, a

byproduct of sugar rvhich is uscd in production of IML. which resultcd in lorver production of 2.35,750,CB as

compared to 2,45.742 CB in thc previous vear, which resultcd in lou er salcs of IML of 2.29.800 CB at an

averag€ realization of Rs.4763.59 Lacs m against 2.48,700 CB at al average realization of Rs. 4.854. I I Lacs

in fie previous 1ear.

Clo-qcncratlon

Total porver generated during the lear stood at 58837700 KW compared to -55793500 KW in the prelious

1car. Porver eported to thc Elcctric Suppll Companics stood at 32777000 KW as against 38514500 KW in

the previous year. The avcrage realisation per unit stood at Rs.4.86 per KW as against Rs. 4.42 pcr unit in thc

prcvious year. Going l'onvard. drc porver gcneration capacities arc expected to improvc thcir utilisation levels

due to a greater availability of bagassc resulting from highcr amounts ofcane crushed.

Nature of Business

During the 1,ear under revics, your Compan-v camed out all its segmental activities and there was no change

in its nature of Business.

Material changes and commitment:

No material chang€s and commitments affecting the financial position of tJre Companl occurred bet\reen the

cnd ofthe hnancial year to which thesc financ ial statcmcnts rclate and on the date olthis report.
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Capital Expenditure:

During thc rcar dre Companv has convertcd cntirc capital work in progress to fixed assets amounting lo
Rs.38,34.54-640/- and there by resulting in addition to lixed assets arnounted to Rs.44.90,21,m71-.

lssue and Allotment of Securities/ Changes in Share Capital:

During thc FY 20 I 7- l8 there was no change in the share capital of the companv

Thc capital Stnlcturc- as on date. stands as follols

Authorised Capital: Rs 60 Crorcs

Issues. Subscribcd and Paid up Capital: Rs 34.56 Crorcs

Dividend:
During the Financial year 2017-18. no dividend was declarcd The Board does nd recommend any dividend
fo the 1'ear.

Transfer to reserves:

It is not proposed to transfer any amount to an) reser\cs from thc profits ofthc Compary

Extract of Annud Return:
Ertract ofAnnual Return in Form MGT- 9 is annered to this Report as 'Annexure I"

Boards Composition and Independence:
Thc composition of the Board is in confonmity lrith Scction 149 ofthc Companies Act. 2013 which stipulatcs
that $o Board should have optimum combination ol Executivc and Non-executive Directors rvith at leasl one

Woman Dircctor and at least two Independent drectors. The Chairman of our Board is a Non-cxccutilc
Dirccl.or.

As on 31" March. 2018. the Board comprised of ten Dircctors. Out of tlese' one is Managrng Director u'ho is

also a Promoter of the Company" and t\a'o promoters arc Whole Time Directors and one Whole Time Dircctor
rvho is non-promotcr.

Of the six Non-Executive Dhectors. five are Indcpendcnt Diroctors. Thc Companl' has also appointed one

Woman Dircctor. who also is an rndependent Director. All thc Direcbrs possess the rcquisitc qualifications.

e\pertise and e:r.penence in general corporate managemenL. financc. banliing. laus and other alhed lields
enabling thcm to contnbute effectivelv rn thet capaciq'as Dircctors ofthe Company.

Mr. Umesh Katti. Chairman Mr. Nikhil Katti, Managing Dircctor (MD), Mr. Lava Katti, Whole Time director
(WTD) and Mr. Kush Katti, Whole Time director (WTD) arc rclated to each.

All Independent Directors have given due declarations that thel' meet tho critena of independence as laid
dorvn undcr scction 149(7) of thc Companies Act, 2013

Board Meetings:
During the 1,ear. Ninc Board Meethgs wcrc held, details of whtch are provided in "Annexure II". Thc
intervening gap betrveen the Meetings rvas in compliancc with the requirements stipulated under the
provisions of tlc Companies Act. 2013 and *re Secretarial Standards.

Committees of the Board:
Thc Board has the following committees:
(a) Audit Commttee
(b) Nonrination and Remutreration Commiuce
(c) Stakeholdcrs RclationshipCommittce
(d) Corporate Sociat Responsibility (CSR) Committee
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Details such Bs terms of reference, powers. ftmctions. mcctings. mcrnbership of committce, attendance of
directors etc, are provided in "Annexurr Il" forming part of this Annunl rcpo(.

Board has accepted all recommendations made by thc Audit Committc,c during thc Jcar

Directors:

(a) Inductions
During the 1,ear under consideration. Mr. Basavarai Vccrappa Hagaragi. Mr. Shivanand Basavanncppa

Tubachi and Mrs. Pratibha hamod Munnolli rvcrc appointed as Indcpcndent Directors at thc AGM held on

30n Septembcr, 2017 and also Mr. Venkata Radhakrishna Racharla rvas appointcd as lndependcnt Dircctors

at 0re EGM held on I tlft December, 2017.

(b) Reti rement/Re.appointment
Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti. Whole time director and Mr. Kush Ramcsh Katti- Whole time director. retrc b1

rotation and being cligrblc. offo thcmsch'cs for rcappointment. Thc Board rc.commends their appointment.

None of Independent Directors rvill rctlre at thc ensuing Annual General Mccting.

(c) Resignation
During the year under revien, Mrs. Shecla Umesh Katti. Non-Exccutivc Director and Mr. Shrinivas Koujalgi

and Rajaram Tukaram Shiralkar lndependent Director of the Compary resigncd as a Dirccior on September

30. 2017 and November 20. 2017 rcspectrvcll on pcrsonal grounds. Thc Board rvrshss to place on record his

valuable contributron to the company during his tenure as a Director.

None ofthe Directors ollour Companv arc disqualificd as po provisions ofScction 164(2) of the Companies

AcL 2013. Your Directors hal,e made necessary disclosurcs- as rcquircd undcr various provisions of the

Cornpanies AcL 2013.

Key Menagerial Personnel:

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companics Act. 2013, thc Kq Managoial Pcrsonnel (KMP) of the Compary

are Mr. Nikhil Katti. Managing Dircctor. Mr. Lava Katti, Whole Time Director, Mr. Kush Katti. Whole Time

Director. and Mr. Mallikarjur Pujar. Whole Time Director. Mr. Shcshagiri Kulkarni. Chicf Financial Officer

and Ms. Sneha Patil. Companl Secretary & Compliance O{ficer.

Directors' Responsibility Statement:
ln terms of Section 134 (5) of thc Companics Act. 201 3, the directors sould likc to state that:

(i) In the preparation of thc annual accounts. the applicablc accounting standards (lndAS) have been folloued

along with propu erplanation relatrng to matcrial dcparturcs.

(ii) Thc dircctors harc sclxtcd such accounting policics and applicd thcm consistcntlr and rnadc judgmcnts

and estimatcs that $ere reasonable and prudent so as to giyc a true and fair vicrv ol the stale of affairs of the

Compan)- at thc end olthe hnancialvear and of thc profit or loss o[tie Conrpanv lor that pcriod.

(iii) The directors have taken proper and sufficicnt carc for the maintcnance of adcquatc accounting records in

accordance rvith the prol'isions of this Act for saleguarding thc assets of thc Companl and for prevcnting and

detecting fraud and other rregularitrcs.

(iv) The directors havc prcpared the annual accounls on a going concem basis.

(r) The directors had laid dorvn intcrnal financial controls to bc lolloucd b1'thc companl'and that such

internal financial controls are adequalc and $'crc operating cffcctivcll.
(vi) The directors had devised proper l,stems to cnsure compliancc rvith thc provisions of all applicablc larvs

and lhat such q,stenr rvcre adcquatc and operating cffcctivcll'.

Based on the lramework o[ internal financial controls cstablishcd and nraintaincd by the Company, work

performcd b,'the intemal. stalutory and sccrctarial auditors- rcviervs pcrformcd b-v thc management and the

ielevant Board Committccs, lhe Board. in concurrcncc with thc Audit Committcc, is of the opinion that the

Company's inlernal financial controls uerc adcquatc and cflbctivc as on 31"' March. 2018.

Policy on Directors' Appointment, Remuneration, Etc.
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The tbllol ing policics arc attached hcrovith and marked as "Annexure -lII (a) and III (b)' rcspectivcll

a. Policl, for selection of Dircctors and determining Directors lndependence; ard evaluation mechanism

b. Remuncration Policy for Directors, Kq managerial Personnel ard other errykryees.

Board Evaluation:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013. the Board has carried out the evaluation of its orvn

pcrformance and that of thc Board Committees, viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Rcmuneration

Committsc, CSR Commitlc. and Stalieholders' Rclationship Committee as well as *aluation of pcrformarcc

of Directors indilidually. A structured questionnaire \ras prepared after taking into considcration tle inputs

reccived from the Directors. covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacl of thc

composition of thc Board and its Committecs. Board culture, e,iecution and performance of specific dutics,

obligations. corporatc govemance practiccs and stakeholders' interests. etc. A separate oiercise was carried

out to evaluate the pcrfo,rnuncc of individual Dircclors including the Chairman of the Board uho s'erc

evaluatcd on parametcrs such as lcvcl of engagement and contribution, independence ofjudgemenL mcetlng

risk managemcnt and competition challenges. compliance and due diligence. financial control. safeguarding

thc interest ofthe Company' and its minori5' shareholders etc.

Thc pcrformancc evaluation of the lndependent Directors was carried out fu the cntire Board. Thc

performance evaluation of ths Chairman and the NonJndcpendent Dtectors \yas carricd out bv thc

Indepcndcnt Dircctors. Thc Nominatron and Remuneration Committee also carricd out oaluation of crcrl'

director's pcrformance. The Directors cpressed satislaction rvith tle evaluation proccss.

Statutory Auditors and their Audit Report:

ln accordancc with Section 139 of thc Companies Act. 2013 and Rules made thereundcr, Members at thc 22nd

Annual General Mccting of the Company approvcd the appointrnent of Statutory Auditors, M/s. Cojanur &

Co.. Chartcrcd Accountants, for a pcnod of 5 years. The said appointment u'as subject to ratification b1

mcmbcrs evcn' vcar.

Hoso cr. thc rcquirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors undo proviso to Scction 139 o[
thc Companies Act. 2013 is done awar,'rvitJr under &e Companies (Amendment) Act. 2017. As such- Board

docs not seek membcrs' ratification for thcir appointment.

Therc arc no qualifications. rescrvations or adl'ersc remarks made b)'the Statutor] Audilors in their report for

the financial 1'ear ended March 31, 2018. Pusuant to provisions of section 143 (12) of the Companies Act

2013. the Statutorl Auditors haYe not reported anf incident of fraud to the Alldit and fusk Managcmcnt

Commrttcc during lhc l ear undcr rcr rcrr.

Secretarial Auditors and their Audit Report:
Pusuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, yotlr compan! has appointed Mr.

Sudheendra P. Ghali, a practlsing Company Secrcta4, to undertaiie the secretarial audit of &e companl l'or

the financial year 2017-18. The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2017-18 is attached as 
*Annexure IV"

and forms part of this Rcport.

There arc no qualifications made b.v the Secretarial Auditor in his report lor the financial 1'ear cndcd 3l
March. 2018. Response to the comment made by the Secretarial Auditor in respcct ofthe Companl not fulll
e\pending the requisite quantum of CSR spend during the l"ear as re+lired under Section li5 ol the

Companies Act 2013 is given in Annual Rcport on CSR activities.

Pumuant to the recommendation of the Audrt Committec. the Board of Directors have re-appointcd Mr.
Sudheendra P. Ghali. Companv Sccrctary in Practice to conduct the Socretarial Audit for FY 2018-19 at its
meeting held on 28 August, 2018.

Cost Auditors and their Audit Report
Section 148 of thc Companies Act 2013 read rvith Rules made thereundcr mandates every Conrpanl
belonging to category prcscribcd in the Rules to undcrtake a Cost Audit. In compliance rvith said provlston-

Companl,had appointed Mls S.K. Tikarc & Co., Cost Accountants, Belgaum to audit tfte cost records for FY
2017- 18. The Cost Auditor has submittcd the Cost Audit report for FY 2017-18.
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There are no qualifications, resen ations or asvlerse remarks madc by 0rc Cost Auditors in their report for the

financial year ended 3 I '' March. 20 I 8.

Pursuant to thc rccommcndation of thc Audit Committce. thc Board of Dlrcctors havc rc-appointcd lvlls S K
Tikare & Co.. Cost Accountants, Belgaum as the Cost Auditors for FY 2018- l9 at a fixed remuneration ofRs.
1,50,000/-, excluding applicable taxcs, subject to approval bv the members at thc ensuing Annual General

Meeting of the Company.

Board recommends tlrc approval of rhe said remuneration payable to the Cosl Auditor in accordance with
Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments:
Your company has invested an amount of around of Rs 10,000 in the BBUSS BanL and Rs.-53.14.000/- BDCC

Bank. Further, during the 1,ear under revierv. your company has nor gilen arry loans or guarartces to any of
the parties.

Related Party Transactions:
Al[ the trarsactions carried out nilh Rclated parties for the 1,ear under revierv were on arrn s length basis and

are n compliance ivith the applicable provisiors of the Act. There are no material srgnificant related party

transactions made by the Compan-v with Promoters. Directors or Ke_v Managerial Personnel etc. which may

have potential conflicl 
"vith 

thc intercst of the Companl at large. Delails of each of the related part1,

transaction entered into by the Companv during the Year togcthcr wrth justification are annexed herewith in
Form AOC-2 as "Annexure V".

Conservation ofEnergy, Technolory Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
The information pertaining to consen'ation of energr', tcchnolog" absorption- Foreign exchange Earnings and

outgo as required under Section l3a (3Xm) ofthe Companies Act. 2013 rcad wi& Rule8(3) ofthe Companies

(Accounts) Rules. 2014 is furnished in "Annexure VI".

Corporate Social Responsibility:
Your Companl' as part of its Corporate Social Responsibiliti' (CSR) initiative, undertook manl' projects hke

promotion of cducation in mral areas. infrastructue and sanitation development. rvelfare of gtrl child-

facilitating pure drinking rvater to thc identificd rural areas in and around the factor-v at Bcllad-Bagewadi

Your management wants to ensure that the fund so earmarked reaches out to the neef and is in l.he process of
outlining a program to benefit the nccdl, local populace. Annual report car CSR activities is encloscd as

"Annexure VII" to this report.

Development and implementation of Risk Management policy:

Thc company has adequate risk managcment policy. The policl' on risk assessment and minimisatron

procedures as laid dortn by the Board are pcriodically revicwed bl thc Audit Committec and thc Board. The

policy facilitates in identihcation of risks at appropnate time and ensrres necessary steps to bc taken to

mitigate the risks.

Deposits:

Your company neither accepted nor repaid any deposits during the FY ended 3lst Marcll 2018. Further, there

were no outstanding deposits as at the beginning offhe FY or at arN time dudng the FY 2018. Hcnce, there

are no details to be provided pursuant to Rule 8 (5) (v) & (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014.

Subsidiary Companies:

The Companl'has no subsidiaries. joint vcntures or associate companics.
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lnternal Financial Control:
Your compary adopted policies and procedures which enables implementation of appropriatc internal

financial controls across the organisation and also ensurcs thc orderly and efficient conduct ol busincss.

including adherence to the Compaqv's Policics, safcguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of
frauds and srrors- the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timell, preparation of reliablc
financial disclosures.

Internal Financial Conlrols are an integral part of thc Risk Management Process, ad&cssing financial and

financial reporting risks. Thc Intcmal Financial Controls havc becn documented digitizcd and embedded in

thc busincss proccss.

Assurancc on thc effectiveness of thg Internal Financial Controls is obtainod tkough managcmenl. roicus.
control sclf-asscssmenl. continuous monitoring bl lunctional cxperts as $'ell as tcsting of thc Intcrnal

Financial Control svstems by the Internal Auditor during thc course olaudits. It is believed that thcsc s1'stcns

providc reasonable assurance that your Internal Financial Controls arc commensurate rvith the requirements ol
our organization.

Internal Auditor
Thc Board of Directors based on thc rccommendation of the Audrt Comnittcc hale appointcd Mr.

Sudhccndra P. Ghali. Companl' Secretary. Belgaum. as thc Intcrnal Auditor of lour Companr'. Thc Intcrnal

Auditor arc submitting their reports on quarterll' basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
ln accordance rrith the provisions of SEBI (LODR)Rcgulations. 2015. a Report on the Managcmcnt

Discussion and Analvsis is set out in Anns\arc Vlll attachcd to this Repo(

Corporate Governance:
Highest standards of Corporate Govemance practices are maintained and lollowed in everv walk of lilc of our

Companl. A separate repon on Corporate Governance is providcd togaher with a certificate from Statutory

Auditors of the Company regarding compliance ol condrtions ol Corporate Governance as stipulated under

SEBI (LODR) Rcgrrlations, 2015 is attached as Arnexurc- IX to this Report.

A ccrtificate ol thc CEO and CFO of the Cornpar!, in terms ol Listing Regulations- urter alia confirming the

corr@tness of thc l-rnancial statements and cash llorv statcmcnts. adequacl of the internal control measures

and reportrng matters to tlrc Audit Commitlee is also anncxcd in the Corporate Govemance Report

Particulars of Employees:

Thc Company- docs not have anv cmplor.ee rvhosc rcmuneration falls rvithin the pwview of thc limits
prescribcd undu the provisions of Section 197 of thc Companies Acl. 2013. read with Rule 5(2) of thc
Companies (Appointment and Remuncration of Managcrial Personncl) Rules,2014.

Vigi I Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:
in tcrms of l.hc provisions ol Secuon 177 ol lhe Companics Act. 2013 vour company has formalizcd thc
proccss and institutionalized 'Whistle Blorver Polic-v' within the Companv. whcreby employccs and othcr
stakeholdcrs can report matt€rs such as generic grievances. comrption, misconduct, illegality and
$astagc/misappropriation of asssts to the Companr.

The poliry safeguards the whistle blos'ers to report conccans or grievances and also provides dircct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The vigil Mechanisnr and whistle Blortu Policl' m4v be accessed on our website at: wuu,.vsil.co.in

1

Significant and Material Orders:
Therc arc no significanl,/ material orders passcd by thc Regulators / Courts / Tnbunal u.hich would inrpact lhc
going conccrn status of thc Company and its future opcrations.



Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women st Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)

Act,2013:
The companl' strongll support thc nghts of all the cmplol,ees to \\ork in harassmcnt - free environment.

The Companl' has adopted a Polio on Prevention. Prohibition aod Re&essal of Sexual Harassment at

workplace as per the provisions of the Ser:ual Harassmcnt of Women at Workplace (Prevention.

Prohibition and Redressal) Act- 2013 and the Rulcs madc thcrcunder. The policv aims to provide
protcction to Emplc,yees at lhe workdace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for

matters conncctcd or incidental therao- with the objcctivc ofproriding a safc sorking environment, where

Employees feel securc. Thc Compan-y has also constitutcd an Internal Committee. knor-n as Anti Serual

Harassmsnt Committee to address the conccrns and complaints ol scxual harasment and to recommcnd

appropriate action.

Your company furthcr corfirm that during the year under revicw, there werc no cases filed pursuant to thc

Sexual Harassmcnt of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Acf 2013.

Your companv confirm that rl'e havo complied with thc provisions relating to the constitution of Internal

Complarns Committcc undcr the Sexual Harassment of Womcn at Workplace (Prevention Prohibition and

Rcdressal) Act.20l3.

Listing of Securities:
During lhe 1,car thc Companl,has filed Draft Rcd Herring Prospecrus (DRHP) uith Securities Exchangc

Board of India (SEBI)on 21"'December,20l7.

Compounding:
During the 1'ear the Company has filcd Joint Application For Compounding Under Section zt4l Of The

Companies Act, 2013 For Composition Of Offences Undcr Scctions 56,60,60b,64,67.68a(2),72,73 Read,

With Section 629a Of The Companies Act. 1956 mattcr is pcnding with NCLT.

Acknowledgements:
The Dircctors rvish to placc on record ther appreciation to thc wholehearted help and co-operation the

Company has received from thc business associates. partners. vendors. clients, govcrnment authorities. and

banliers of the Company.

The relations bctrvccn the management and thc staff rvere cordial during tle period urder revicw.

The Companl, also \rishes to put on rccord its approciation lor the sork donc b1'the staff Your Dircctors

appreciat,e and value the trust imposed upon thcm by the mcmbcrs of the Compan\'.

For and on behalf of the Board

Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Li

# []mesh
nl:ln

DIN: ,161050

Place: Bellad Bagewadi

Date:28/08/2018
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Annexure II

Number of Board Meetings:
Thc Board of Dircctors met Nine times during the financial 

-v-.ear 
2017-lll. The meetings u,ere held on

0tlsMa1'.2017.0l"Jul-v.2017, l0sJulv.2017. I(P Augusl 28u Augusr.2017.3{F Seprenrber- 2Ot7 -
20'h Novembcr, 20 I 7, l8th Deccmber. 2017 . 27'h March 2018. Thc maximum timc gap betwcen fwo
consccutivc meetings did not ericeed one hundred and trventv da1-s.

Details ofthe Directors as on March.ll. 2018

(a) llxcludes privale limited companies. foreign companies and conrpanies registered under Sectio 8 ofthe Cornpanies Aot.

?013 (i.e. associations nol caming ou business lix profil o, $hich prohibih pavrnent ofdividerd)

# ChairmanshipMembership ofAudit c-rnmittee and Slakcholder's Relatiursltip Conmittcc in oiher public companies has

been considcrcd.

* Appointed as l)irector at the 22rd Amual Genersl Mccting ofthe Company hcld on 30 Scptcmbcr. 2017

" Rcsigned Iiorn the otlico of Drector w.e.l--10 Scptembor. :017 and 20 Nolcmber. 2017

"+ Appointed as l)rector al the Extra-Ordinar\ General Mceting ol'thc Companv held on l8th ft€mber. 2017

Committees of Board:
Thc Board has constituted various Commiu.ccs to focus on spccific arcas and to malic infsmcd
decisions rvithin their authority. Each Committee is govcmed b] its charter and has well defincd terms

of rcference rvhich outline thc scope. roles, responsibilities and po*'os of the Committcc. All thc

decisions and recommendations of thc Committce are placed before the Board for its approval. Thc

various board level commrttees are as under -

o Audit Committce

o Nomination and Rcmuncration Committee

. Stakcholders RelatronshipComnrittcc

. Corporate Social Responsibili[ (CSR) Committec

CommitlG
Director

Calegory Numb(,
ofBoard

meeting3

hcld

Numbs
ofBosrd

\Icrrings
hcld

durins

Directo.

Wterhcr
sttend€d

lsrt
ACIU

Numbs of
Directorshipc

of other

public ('fiairman

l'mcsh \ishwan{tfi Katti I

\ikhil I mesh Lstti ManaginS

t)ireot(lr

9 9 t) I

hva Rsmcsh Kaui

Time

DirEator

9 9

Kush Ram€sh KBtlr

Titue

Dirq)tor

9 9 ,

\'lsllikarjnn Ksdsvr$ hj.r
Tine
Director

9

surcndra shnnl{vcs khoi 9
,7

9

Pr alibha I'}ramod \lutrnollir 9 J .l

Bsssv,raj \:e€rapps

H,ssrasir
9 .l l

Shivonand Basav{n"eppa

lubachit

.1 .1

Yenlala Rsdhakri shna 9 \o I

snn'\{s Koui"lsi+* 9 { No

Shcela I rmesh Kaltr*r 9 5 5

I

JI



All dcrisions pertaining to the constitution of Committces, apporntment of members and fixing of
terms of refoence / role of tle Committees are takcn by the Board of Directors. During the year under

revie$', Board ol Directors at their meeting held on i8'h December. 2017 ha\'e reconstituted all tlrc
committees w.c.I l8m Dcccmber. 2017.

Details on the role and composition of thesc Committces. including the number of mcetings held

during the lmancial year ard attendancc at meetings, arc provided belou'.

(a) Audit Committee
The Audit and Risk Managcmcnt Commiucc mct four timcs during thc 1-car 2017-18 on 86 Ma1.

2017.28$. August. 2017. l8s Deccmber. 2017, and 27h March, 2018. The maximum time gap

betwecn two consc{utivc meetrngs did not excccd one hundred and tlventy days. Thc minutes of the

meetings of the Audit Committee are notcd by the Board. The dctails of the composition of the

Committce. meetings held. attsndance at thc mcetings, arc given in Table belorv.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
As on 31" March- 2018. thc Committcc compriscs ol thrcc Dircctors uhcrcin all arc Indcpendcnt

Dircctors.

The Chairman o[ the Committee \ras present at t]re 22'd Annual General Meeting of the Company

held on 30u Septcmber, 2017 to ansvcr shareholder querics.

This Committee mct once during *re financial 1'ear i.e. on l8'h Deccmber, 2017.

Ms. Sncha Patrl. Companl Sccrctan is thc Sccrctary to thc committcc.

The details of the composition of the Committee, nrccting hel4 attendance at the meeting are given in
Table belorv:

Namc ol'the Mcnrbcr Catcgor! Position Numbcr ofmectings
held

Nurrhcr ofmectiugs
a(e[ded

Mr. Basawrai l{agargi Independcnt D roctor Chairnran I I

Mrs. Prstibha Munnolli lndcpendont l)rcclor Memhcr I I

Mr. Surcndra R. Khot lndcpendent [)ircclor Membcr 1 I

(r) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
This Committee met.l timcs during the financial year i.e. on 86 May, 2017. 286 August, 2017. l8'h

Decembcr, 2017. and,27'h March. 2018. Ms. Sneha Patil. Company Secretary is the secretary to this

Committee.

Thc details of the composition ofthe Corrunittec, meetings hel{ atlrndance at the meetings, are given

in Table below:
Namc of thc Memr^Lr Catcgon Posilion Number of meeti ngs

held

Nunbcr ol-nreetings

attcnded

Mr. Shirarrrrrd l uhrrchr Indcpcndeot I)i rcctor Charrnlrn ,1

N{r. llt\a Kalti Whole f in* l) rcctor Mcmr.(r J
Mr. Nikhil K.aui Ma0agr ng Dircclor Membcr l J

Name of the Mcmbcr Category Position Number of
mectings hcld

Number of
meetings

attended

Mr. Shivanand

Tubachi

lndependcnt Dircctor Charrnran ,} )

Mr. R.V.

Radhakrishna

Indcpendent Director Membcr 4 2

Mr. Umcsh Katti Chairman & Non

Exccutive Dirccl.or

Membcr { .t
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(d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
CSR Committcc comprises of Onc Non-executivc Dircctor. Onc Exccutivc Dircctor and one

Independent Director viz. Mr. Umesh V. Katti (Chairman). Mr. Kush R Katti and Mrs. Pratibha

Murnolli

During 2017-18. thc Committcc mct oncc i.c. on l8'h Deccmbcr.20l7

Thc dctails of the composition ofthc Committee. meetings held, attendancc at thc mcetings are given

in Tablc bclou:
Narne ofthe Member Catogory Position Numtrr ofmectings

held

Nunrbcr ol'meelings

attcnded

Mr. t,mesh V. Krtti Chair.nsfl & Non Ex€cutive

f)ircctor

Chairnurr I I

Mr. Kush R. Katti Wlole Tinr Drcckr Member I I

Mn l)ratibha Munnolli lndependonl Dire',:k)r Nlr nrbcr I

Morc details on CSR spend bl thc Companv is provided in thc Annual report in lhe section on CSR

activitics. u'hich lorms part of Dircctors' Rcport.

CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed at the following link
( (,nr.lll. uDioa.ir-=]l!!iai. ci8&ler-lui

http:/tr sil co. in/s p-

14



ANNEXURE. III
lAnnexure to Director's Report - Statutory Disclosuresl

Annuare - II(a)

Policy for selection of Directors and determining Directors Independence

l. Introduction:

ll Vishrvaraj Sugar Indistrics Limitcd bclicrcs that an cnlightcncd Board consciousll

creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policl approach to improve

the qualilv of govcrnancc. Torrards this. Vishuaraj Sugar Industrics Limiled ensures

constitution of the Board of Directors with rcquircd composition, drvcrsified c\pcrtisc and

erperience and commitment to discharge their rcsponsibilitics and duties effcctivcly.

Vishwaraj Sugar lndustncs Limited rccognizcs the importancc of lndependent

Directors in achio'ing thc effectiveness of the Board.

1.2

and

2. Scope:

2.1 This Policl sets out thc guidlng principles for the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee for identilling pcrsons uho arc qualificd to become Dircctors and to detcrminc

the independencc o[ Diroctors. in case of thcir appointmcnt as lndcpcndcnt Dircctors of the

Companl'.

3, Terms and References:

In &is Policl'. the following toms shall havc thc following meanings:

3.I *Director' 
means a Director appointed to the Board olthe Company

3.2 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee" means a Committcc constituted b1'

Vishuaraj Sugar Industrics Limited's Board in accordancc with thc provisions of Scction

I 78 of thc Companies Act. 2013.

3.3 "Independent Director" means a Dircctor rcfcrred to in sub-scction (6) of Scction 149 of
the Companies Act. 2013.

4. Policy:

,.1,I Qualifications and Criteria

4.1. t The Nomination and Rcmuncration (NR) Committcc and thc Board shall ro'icrv on an

annual basis, appropriatc skills. knollcdgc and crpcricncc rcquircd of thc Board as a rvholc

and its individual members. Thc objcctive is to harc a Board * ith divcrsc background and

cxpcricncc that arc rclcvaut for the Cornpanl''s opcrations.

4.1.2 ln evaluating the suitabilit"v of individual Board mcmbers. the Nomination

Remuneration Committee may takc into account factors. such as:

. Gensral understanding ofthe lndustr_v vis a vis Company-'s busincss pospcctivc:

. Educational and profcssional background

. Standing in the profcssion:

o Pcrsonal and professional ctlics. integritv and values:
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Willingness to devote suffrcicnt time and enogv in carr.yrng out their duties and

rcsponsibilities effectivel1,.

4. 1.3 The proposed appointec shall also lirlfill the following requirements

Shall posscss a Drector ldentification Number;

Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act. 2013;

Shall girc his *ritten consent to act as a Director:

Shall endeavour to attcnd all Board Meetings ard rvherever he is appointed as a

Committee Member, the Committcc Meetingsl

Shall disclose his concern or interest in any- Cornpany or Companies or Bodics

Corporate, Firms including his shareholding at the frst meeting ofthe Board in everv

finarrcial year and thcreafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already

madc:

Such other requirements as may be prescribd from time to trme. undcr the

Companies Act, 2013 and otho rclevant laws.

4. 1.4 Thc NR Committee shall cvaluatc cach individual u'ith the objective olhaving a $oup that

bcst cnables the succcss of ttc Companl"s business.

4.2 Criteria of lndependence

4.2. I The NR Committcc shall asscss the independence of Directors at thc timc of appointmcnt /
rc-appointmcnt and thc Board shall assess the same annualll'. Thc Board shall rc-assess

dctcrminations of indcpcndcncc uhcn anv re\1- interests or relationships arc discloscd b1 a

Dircctor.

4.2.2 Thc critcria of indcpcndcncc. as laid doun in Companies Act. 2013. is as belou'

An independent director in relation to a compan).. mears a director other than a managlng

director or a rvholc-timc dircctor or a nominee dkector-

who. in the opinron of thc Board is a person of integrity and possesses relo ant

cpcrtisc and cpcricncc:

b. (i) who is or rvas not a promoter of thc compan-v u its holding. subsidiarv or associate

compan\':
(ii) sho is not related to promotcrs or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiarl

or associatc comparry-:

uho has or had no pecunrary relationship rvith the compan]'. its holding. subsidiary or

associatc compani. or their promotcrs- or dircctors. amounting to two percent or morc

of its goss turnovcr or total income as mal be prescribed- u'hichever is lorvcr. during

thc t\r'o immediatelv pr*cding financial years or during the current financial vear.

d. nonc of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship cn transaction rvith thc

compan), its holding subsidiary or associate compan)', or their promotcrs, or directors.

{unounting to two per cent or more of its gross hrrno\er or total incomc or fifty lakh

rupccs or such highcr amount as ma1'be prescribc4 rvhichever is louer. during the tuo
immediately preccding financial years or during dre current financial -"-ear.

e. who, neithcr himsclfnor any ofhis rclatives-

a

c
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(') holds or has held the position ofa key managerial personnel or is or has been

emplol-cc of thc company or its holding. subsidiaq, or associate companl in

any' of thc tluec financial ),ears immediatel)' preceding the financial year in
rvhich he is proposed to be appointed:

is or has bcen an emplol'ee or proprietor or a parher. in anv of the three

financial years immediatel-v preceding the financial year in rvhich he is
proposed to be appointed oF-

(A) a firm of auditors or compar) secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the

companv or its holding subsidian or associate compan): or

( ii)

(B) an) lcgal or a consulting firm that has or had arry- transaction uith the

companv, is holding. subsidiary cr assciale compan) amounting to tcn
pcr cent or more of the gross turnover of such firm:

(iii) holds togcther uith his relatives t\r'o per cent or more of the total voting powo
of trc companv: or

(iv) is a Chief Erecutivc or dircclor, bl uhaterer name called. of aq.,' non-profit
organisalion that receives twenty-five per cent or more of its rcccipts from the

compan\,, anl, of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate

compant or that holds r\4*o per cent or more of thc total voting powcr of thc

compan-v; or

(v) is a matcrial supplier, service provider or customsr or a lessor or lcssee of the

company.

I shall posscss appropriate skrlls. cxpericnce and knowledge in one or more frclds of
financc. lalr- managencnt. salcs. marketing, administration- research- corpcratc
govcmancc. techrucal operations. corporate social responsibilit)' or oth€r drsciplincs
related to the Companl,'s business.

g. shall possess such othcr qualihcations as mal be prescribed liom time to time. undcr

thc Companics Act. 2013.

h. rvho is not less than 2l years ofage

4.2.3 The lndependcnt Directors shall abide by the ''Code for Indepcndent Directors" as specified

in Schcdule IV to the Comparucs Act, 2013.

4.J Other directorships / committee memberships

4.3. I Thc Board mcmbers are e\pected to ha\e ad€quatc time and erpertise and er?erience to
contributc to cflcctile Board performance. Accordrngll'- members should voluntarilv limit
ticir dircctorships rn other listcd publ rc limited companies in such a \r'a) that it does not

intcrfcrc uitr thcr rolc as dircctors of the Company. The NR Committee shall take into
account tlrc naturc of and the tirne invollcd in a Director's senice on othcr Boards- in
evaluating thc suitabilit) of the individual Director and making its recommendations to thc

Board.

4.3.2 A Director shall not scrve as a Director in more than 20 companies of *,hich not more than

shall be l0 Public Limited Companies.
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Annacure - II(h)

Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other emplovees

1. I nt roduction:

Vishu'araj Sugar Industries Limited rccognizcs thc importance olaligning the business ob.icctives

urth specific and mcasureablc indrvidual objectives and targets. The Companv has thcrcforc

formulated the remuneration policl for its dircctors- kcr managerial pcrsonnel and other

emplolces kccping in vierv l}c follorving objcctives:

a) Ensuring that thc level and composition of rcmuneration is reasonable and su{ficient to
atkact, retain and motivate employees to run thc cornpany succcssfully.

b) Ensuring that rclationship ofrcmuneration to pcrformance is clcar and meets ftc performancc

bcnchmarks.

c) Ensr.ning that remuneration is based on such paramctcrs reflecting short and long term
pcrformance objectives appropriate to the rrorliing of thc compan)' and is goals.

2. Scope:

This Policy sets out the guiding prrnciples for the Nomination and Remuneration Commiffee

for recommending to the Board the remuneration of thc directors. kq managcrial pcrsonncl

and other emplol-ees of the Compan1,.

3. Terms and References:

ln this Policl. the follouing tcrms shall havc the follouing mcanings

3.l"Director" mcans a director appointcd to thc Board of the cunpanl

3.2 *Key Managerial Personnel" nrcans

(I) the Chief Executive Offrcer or the Managing Director or thc Managcr;

(ii) thc Company Secretar),;

(iii) tle Wholc-time Diector:
(iv) the Chief Financial O{ficer: and

(v) such otho olliccr as may be prescribed under lhc Companies Act- 2013

Nomination and Remuneration Committee" mcans thc conmittee constituted b], tIrc tsoard

of Dircctors of Vishsaraj Sugar Industrics Limited in accordance with thc provisions of
Scction 178 of thc Companies ,Act. 2013.

4. Policy:

4.1 Remuneration to Executive Dirertors and Key Managerial Personnel

4. l. I Thc Board- on the recommendation of the Nomination and Rcmuncration Committcc. shall

rcvierv and approve the remuneration palable to the Erecutilc Dircctors of the Companl

*'itrin thc overall limr6 approved by thc shareholders.

4. 1.2'the Board on thc recommendation of tle NominaLion and Rcmuncration Committce. shall

also revicw and approve the remuneration payable to the Kcy Managerial Persorurel of the

Compan-v.

J.J
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4.1.3 The remuneration structurc to thc Executive Dircctors and Key Managerial Personnel ma1

include the follorving components:

(i) Basic Pay

(ii) Pcrquisitcs and Allorvanccs

(iii) Commission (Applicable in case of Erecutive Dircctors)
(iv) Retiral benchts
(v) Annual Performancc Bonus

4.2 Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

The Board on the recommcndation ol thc Nomrnation and Remuncration Committec- shall
revic,| and approlc the rcmuncration pal,able to the Non-ExecutiYe Dircctors of the Companl

rvithin the ovcrall limits approvcd by thc sharcholders, il an1".

4.3 Remuneration to other emplovees

Emplovees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and sork expcrience,

competencies as well as dreir roles and responsibilities in thc organization. Individual
remuncration shall bc detcrminsd within tlre nppropriatc gadc and shall be based on various

factors such as job profile. skrll sets. seruorit),- experience and prcvailing remuncration lclels for
equivalent jobs.



Annexure IV
IAnnexure to Director's Report - St.tutory Disclosuresl

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT

FOR TITE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3IdMARCH,2OI8

lPursuant to Section 204(l) of the Companies Act 201.1 and Rule No.9 ofthe Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141

To
The Members,
Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited
Bellad Bagewadi Taluk: Hukkeri.
Belgaum- 591305

I halc conductcd the Secrctarial Audit of thc compliance o[ applicablc statutory pror isions and the adhcrcncc to good

corporate practices b),VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIWTED (hereinalicr callcd "the Companl'').
Secrctarial Audit lvas conducted in a manno that provided mc a reasonablc basis for evaluating thc corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and anprcssing my oprmon thereon. The Company's Managemcnt is responsiblc lbr
preparation and maintenance of sccretarial and other records and for devising proper s) stems to cnsure compliance

rvi& the provisiors of applicablc larvs and regulations. Bascd on my.' vcrification of thc books, papers. minute books,
forms and rcturns filcd and other records maintained b.v the Company and also the information provided by the

Compani'- its officcrs. agents and authorized rcprcsentativcs during the conducl of sccrctarial audit. I hcrc[ report

that in mv opinion the Company has. dunng thc audit period covering thc financial vear cnded on 3 lst March. 201 tl

complied rvith the statutory provisions listcd hercunder and also that the Company has propo Board processes and

compliance mcchanism in placc to the extent. in thc manner and subject to the rcporting made hcreinaftcr:

Ihavs examined the books, papers, nrinute books^ forms and rcl.urns filed and othcr records maintained lry the

Company for the linancial 1'ear ended on 3l st March, 2018, to the extcnt applicable. according to thc provisions ol

l. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Ac1) and the Rules madc thereunder as amcnded liom time to time:

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and tho Rules made thercunder:

3. The Depositmies Act. ISX ard tlrc Regulations and Bye-laus framed thercunder:

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereundcr to the c\tent of
Foreign Direct lnvcstment, Overscas Direct investrnent and External Commercial Borronings:

5. The Regulatrons and Guidelines prcscribed under the Sccurities and Exchange Board of lndia Act. 1992 ("SEBI

Act") or by SEBI, to the extcnt applicable

a) Thc Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sharcs and Talicovos) Rcgulations.
20r l:

b) Thc Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Prohibition of lnsider Trading) Regulations. 1992 and the
Securities & Exchange Board of lndia (Prohibition of lnsidcr Trading) RcAlations, 2015;

c) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (lssuc of Capital and Drsclosure Requiremcnts) Rcgulations.
2009:

d) The Sccurities & Exchange Board of India (Ernploy-ce Stock Option Schemc and Enrplol,ee Stock Purchase

Scheme) Guidclines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchangc Board of lndia (Sharc Bascd Emplovcc Bencfits)
Regulations.20l4:

e) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (lssuc and Listmg of Dcbt Securitics) Regulations, 2008t
I) The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issuc and Sharc Transfcr Agcnts) Regulatrons.

1993.-

g) Thc Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dclisting of Equiqv Sharcs) Regulations. 2009:
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bwback of Sccurities) Rcgulations. l99tt:

Having regards Lo the compliancc sT,sl-cm prc'r'ailing. on cxamination of &e rclevant drruments on a test check basis,
explanations provided: I lurthcr report that the Companl- has complicd r.l.ith thc following lau.s applicablc specificallv
to thc Companl :

1. Sugar Cess Act. 1982 and the Rules made thereunder:

2. Sugar Dcvelopment Fund AcL 1982 and the Rules made thereundcr;

3. Sugar (Control) Order, 1966;

4. Sugarcane (Control) Order, l9(16:

5. Lerl'Sugar Price Equalisation Fund Act, 1976:

6. Food Safe6,& Standards Act, 2006 and the Rules & Regulations made thaeunder;
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7. Agricultural ard Processed Food Products Erport Act, 1986:

8. Export (Qualit, Control and Inspection) Act, 1963;

9. Essential Commodities Act,l955;
10. Sugar @acking and Marketing) Order. 1970:

ll. The Kamataka Sugarcane (Regulation of Purchase and Suppll) Act.20l3:
12. The Kamataka Sugar (Regulation of Production) Order, 1975:

13. The Electricitl' Act, 2003:

14. The Electriciry- Regulatory- Commission Act. 1998;

15. The Electricity Supply Act, 1948

15. The Legal Metrolory Act, 2009

17. The lndian Boilers Act 1923

18. The Petrolorm Act, 1934

19. The Prevention of Food Adulteration AcL 1976

20. The Molasses Control Ordo. 1966

21. The Factories Act. 1948 and Rules made thcrcunder:

22. Labw laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employccs appointed by the Company;

23. Acts and Rules prescribed under prevention and control ofpollutton;
24. Acts and Rules relating to Environmental protection, energ!- conservalion and hailardous substancc and

chemicals;

25. Acts and Rules rclating to boilers. electriciry erplosives. fire. ctc,.

I have also cxamined compliancc uith thc applicable clauses of thc Secretarial Standards issucd b,v Tho lnsrtute of
Company Secretaries of lndra (lCSl).

During the poiod under ro'ieu. the Companl' has complied sith the prolisions of the AcL Rules. Regulations,

Guidelines. Standards. etc mentioned above.

I further report that

(a) Thc Board of Dircctors of the Compa,,1- is dull constituted $rth propcr balancc of Exccutite Directors- Non-

Executivc Directors and lndependent Directors. The changes in the composition of thc Board of Directors that

took placc during the period under revierv wcre carried out in conrpliance with the provisions ofthe Act.

(b) Adequatc notice is given to all dirc€tors o schcdule thc Board Meetings. agenda and detailed notes on agenda

were sent at least se\cn dal s ur advancc and a Sstcm exists for seckrng and obtaining lurthsr information and

clarifications on thc agenda itcms belbre the rnceting and lor meaningl'ul partrcipatron at the meeting.

(c) None ofthe directors in an), meoting dissentcd on any rctolution and hence there was no instance of recording any

dissenting member's view in the minutes.

(d) I further rcport that subjcct to our obscnation above thcre are adequate systcms and proccsses in the Companl'

commensurate with the siz.c and opcrations of the Compan-v to monitor and ersure compliance with applicable

larvs. rulss. rcgulations and guidelines.

For S. P. Ghali &Co..

Sudheendra P. Ghali
Proprietor
M. No. 70.37

CP No. 75J7

Place: Belgaum

Date: 28108/2018

[This Report is to be read with our lettcr of elrn date which is anncxed as Annexre A and forms an urtegral part of
ths report.I

4B



'Annexure A'
To.

The Members.
Vishwaraj Sugar Indusries Limited
Bellad Bagewadi Taluk: Hukkeri,
Belgaum- 591305

Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be rcad along u'ith this letto.

Management's Responsibility

l. It is dtc rcsponsibilit]- of the management of the Company to maintain sccretarial rccords, devise propcr systems

to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that thc rystems are

adcquatc and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

2. My responsibilitl is to e\prcss an opinion on these sccrctarial records. standards and procedures follorved bv thc
Companl uith respc.ct to secretarial compliances.

3. I believc that audit cvidence and information obtained from the Companl's managcment is adcquate and

appropriate for us to provide a basis for n1'opinion.
4. Whcrcvcr required. I hale obtaincd thc managemenl's rErescntation about the compliance ol laws. rules and

rcgulations and luppening ofevents etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secrctanal Audit Report is neither an asswance as to thc future viabilit_v of thc Company nor olthe efficao
or effectivcncss with which the managemcnt has conducted the affairs ol thc Company.

For S. P. Ghali &Co..

Place: Belgaum

Date: 28108/2018
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l)etails l)clails l)r txil\ l)etrils Det ils IXtailss
L.
N

I)articulars

Umcsh

Katti.
Dreclor

Mallikarjun

K Pujar.

Dreclor

Basararaj V
I lagaragi

I Name (s) ofthe relatcd

pany_ & nature of
relatimship

Niklhil U Karli

[)iredor
Kfltli.lava R

Drector
Kush R Koni,
Dirqrlor

CaDc

Purchase

Caae

Purchase

Nature of
c<nlract anangemcntvt
ransaction

Caae Purchase and

Lesse seurilv
Deposit

Canc hrroha*- Cane F\rrchase Canc

l\rchusc
2

NA NA NA NA-l Duratirm ofthe
con tracls arrrn lemcnl s I

NA NA

Rs.-l-].fi)O - Rs.98.000,-Rs.2.00.86.m0. Rs.2.l6.CXl),- Its.22.39.000- Rs.26,28.000{ Salienl terms olthe
oontmcls or

DranSometrts or

transactioo includiog thc

value, ifany
0E 05 201708 05 2017 08 05 2017 08 05 20t7 08'05 201?5 Date of approval bY lhc

Bosrd

08'05 2017

Rs i7.l{.0t)0 -Rs..10.78.000/- Rs 52.J7.(X)0 -Amount paid as

adlan(}ls. ifall\'

Annerurc - V
lAnne\ure to Director's Report - Statutor! Disclosur€sl

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clausc (h) of sub-section (3) of section l3{ of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companics
(Accounts) Rules, 201{.

Fornr for Disclosurc of particulars of contracts/arrangcments entercd into by the compani with rclated

panies referred to ir sub section (l) of section ltJ{t of thc Companics Act. 2013 inchrding ccrtain arms

length transaction under third pro!iso thereto.

1. Dctails ofconracts or arrangemcnts or transactions not a{ Arm's lcngth basis: NIL

2. Dctails of contracts or arrangements or tsansactions at Arm's lenglh basis

For :rntl on bchalf of ihc Board

Vishwaraj S ar I ndustries Limitcd

h U

Chai

DIN: .16l05t)

Placc: Bellad B:tgcu adi

Date:28/08/2018
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ANIYEXT'RE VI
[Annexure to Director's Report - Statutory Diselosures]

A) CONSERVATTOT{ OF EIYERGY

1| Step takea for coasersatioo of eaergz

The company has taken various steps towards enerry conservation. The company continues to giv
high priority to t1.e conservation of energr on an ongoing basis. Some of the important measures
taken are:
SUGAR DfTIISIOIT:

sl
No

Descriptioa of Eaergz coaservation
implemeated

Remarks/Results

1 The plant includes 5 MiUing tandem & its
au-xiliaries lsr& sth mill are advanced
technolory compact multi roller with TRP
system

The l.t mill increase the primary
extraction & 5d, mill decreases the
bagasse moisture, Hence bagasse will
be saved

2 Our co-generation both boilers are 7O & 8O

TPH
Both boilers steam fuel ratto is 2.2,
thereby bagasse will be saved

3 For Co-gen Plaat
a) 8O TPH Boiler Feed water pump soft starters to

be replaced by 415 V LT drive with VFD
1O06 saving in power

b) Cooling Torver main cooling water pumps Auto
transformer starters to be repiaced by VFD
drive

157o Saving of power

c) Boiling House pump auto transformer starters
to be replaced by VFDs drives

15Zo Saving of power

+ Street Light & Planr lighting
a) In co-gen Plant total 3O0 numbers street light

sodium vapour larnps 25O Waft to be replaced
by lOO Watt LED

Energr saring /day l2Hours
consideration: 54 Kwh

b) In co-gen plant total 3OO numbers plant
lighting sodium vapour lamps 70 watt is to be
replaced by 26 watt LED

Energz saving / day l2Hours
consideration: 160 Kwh

5 For Boiliag House
a) PHE installed for RJ 3.d heating by using heat

from common condensate at boiling house
Stearrr Saving, 1O Tonnes /Hr

b) PHE installed for SJ 1* heating by using heat
from common condensate at boiling house

Steam Saving, 4 Tonnes /Hr

c) PHE installed for clear juice heating in 3 stages
b.y using PTFFE vapour

Steam Saving, 1O Tonnes /Hr

d) PTFFE installed at evaporator station Steam Saving 6 to 8 96 on Cane
e) All A - massecuite batch pans mechanical

circulators fitted & runs on 4th body of PTFFE
Steam Saving 3 "/" on Cane

0 For B - mas.secuite 6 compartments vertical
pan with mechanical circulators mnning on 4tl,

body of PTFFE

Steam Saving 3 %,on Cane

C-massecuite contjnuous pan runrdng on 2"d

body of evaporator
Steam Saving 2 Tonnes / Hr

h) Spray Pond is working on gravitSr pressure no
pumps

Saving of power 325 HP X4No per
Hr

i) PTFFE & SCP working on auto mode -DCS
system

Steam Saving 2 tYo on Ca;re

,) 7 Kglcm) steam is not used Power generation & export increased
k) Sulphur Burner station vapcon system

installed No 7 Kg/cm2 steam is used
Saving Steam O.5 o/o on cane

l) SHWW system PHE installed , NO 7 Kg/cm2
steam is used for centrifugal station for
maintaining wash water temperature

Saving Stea'n 0.5 7n on cane
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2) Steps taken by company to use alternate source of energr, if any: NIL

3t Capital investment on ener$/ conservation equipments: NIL

BI TECHNOIOGY ABSORPTION:

C) FOREIGN E:KCIIANGE EAR"IITINGS A.!TD OUTGO:
tn

Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of
actua-l outflow

2017-t8 2()t6-17
462 ,7 42 ,tO3 .OO 22,a37,2A7.52

By order of the Board
Vbhwaraj Sugar Irdustdes Ltmtted

Umesh

(a) The efforts made towards technologr absorption The following Activities developed in factory
area.
1) Vinegar- From Rectified Spirit
2) Compost from Press Mud
3) Bio gas Plant
4) Carbon Dioxide Plant
5) Condensate Polishing Unit (CPU)

(b) The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

1) Vinegar is product from rectified Spirit. which
is a export quality product.

2) Revenue from CO2 selling
3) From Biogas generate methane gas which is
used in boiler. Ultimately reduce the steam cost.
4) Compost from Press mud .use as a manual
for farmers
5) CPU by treating 20 to 25 (% condensate,
waterconsumption to be reduce.
6) For Primary extraction & BrLr curve mill tests
are conducted for sugar mill performances.

7) Addition 02 Nos mills with TRFin milling pant
& commissioning of plate type Falling Fitm
Evaporator & Continuous Pan.to improve
crushing rate & Production of better quality of
Sugar

(c) In case of imported technolory (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year;

Production ofVinegar from Rectified spirit

(i) The details of technologr imported From German

(ii) The year of import 2015

(iii) Whether the technolosr b€en fully absortred Yes

(iv) If not fully absorbed, aneas where absorption
has not taken place and the reasons thereof

(d) The expenditure incurred on Research and
development.

NIL

20t7-L8 20t6-L7
NIL

Foreigrr Exchange earned in terms of
actual inflow

(DII{:O1 roso)
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AnnexureVIII

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industrial Structure and Dev elopment:

Currently the sugar industry in lndia is covenrl hy public, cooperative and private strkx

companies. Coopcrative S€ctor accounts for nearly 39% in terms of number of factories,

installed capacity and production. India is thc'largesl consumer and thc second largest

producer of sugar in the wo d. There are over 502 sugar factories of vilrious capacities operated

this year. The ownership of sugar industry is a comhination of public, private and cooperative

sectols. Sugar is produced in almost all the major lndian States. Maharashha and U.P.

contribute 70% of the country's total produchon. Tamilnadu, Kamataka, Andhra Pradesh, Bihar

;rnd Guiarat are the other maior sugar producing States. The sugar prices are'very sensitive from

the common man's point of view.

The sugar production in the country during the year will tp around 315 tak$ tonne compared

Lo 203 Lerkh tonne in the previous year. The sugar production during the year 2018-19 is likely

Lo remain at par with current year due to exp€(tod good monsoons and increase tn plantation

area. The long term outlook for sugar looks to be ktrish on account of exct'ss production and

low demanrt position

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are an integrated suggr and other allied producLs manufacturinll company operating from

Bclgium District in the Sratt'of Kamataka which is ilesignated as one of the "High Recovery

zones" for sugar producLion by Covernment of lndia. Wc operate a single ltxation sug3r unit

having licmsed crushing capacity of 11,fi10 TCD. ln addition to sugar we also manufacture

othcr allied products likc Rell.ified Spirits, Extra-Neutral Spirilt lndian Madc Liquor, Vinegar,

Compost, Carbon dioxidc (CO2), etc. and art'further engaged in the g,<'ncration of Power for

captive consumption as well as extemal salt'. Our husintss can hc'nt e tp broken up into five

main seg,ments namely Sugar, Co-Generation, Distilk'ry, lndtm Macle Liquor (lML) and

Vineg3r.

ln the ye.ar 2ffi1, we ( ommcn(ed operations of manufacture of Distillery products such as

Ethanol, Rectified Spirit and Extra Nzutral Spirit. In tht'year a)06, our Company implemertttl

backward integration and tx,p,an eommercial opxrrations for Sugar manufat ture from sugarcane,

along with Co-Generation capabilities. During thc ycar 2008, we began botUing of Indian Made

Liquor. Currently our integrated unit proccsses sugarcanes to produce sugar and the by-

producLs are used to genorate electricity for capLivt' use and colrunercial sale, manufacture

rectificd spirit, ENA, tML, Vinegar, Press-mud and Compost. Ovcr the ycars, we have

oxpandtd the production / manufacturing capacitit's of all our products.

During the production of sugar; bag3sse and molasses are producerl r,r'hich are the basic raw

materials for power gsleration and Distillery (Spirit) manufacturing uniL, resPe(tively. The

sugar unit of our integrated production facility first crushes sugarcan(' to (xtracl iuice emd



process€s the juice kr produce zugar. Thc sugar manufacturctl is then graded ard packcd based

on the sizc oI rrystals and qu;rlity of tht' sugarcane. Durinll the la;t fiscal year vr,e produeed

32,170 Lonnes of sugar. After extractinl', the juice from sugarcane, the residual fibrc leftover

called Ballasst' is u*'d as a fuel for power 1',t'!loration. The molassts ust'tl in the prtxess of sugar

production is fermented and distillc,rl to manufacture various spirits (Rectifid Spirit and Extra

Neutral Spirit) and IML in the distillt'ry unil. of our intelIat(d production antl manufacluring

facility.

Bagasse is the fihrous rcsidual matter used as a tiefucl to generate steam in hip,h pressure

hoilcrs for turning, turbincs to p,cnera t(. ckttri(it)-. W(' ohtain enrng,h Bagasse during thc

crushing seasons, suth that the clctri( ity producetl is usctl nut just for captive consumptiory

but also for sak. For clecrriciB- generat('d over and abovt' our r'aptive consumption, we have

entered into Powt'r Purchase Agrem('nts with 5 electricity distrihution companics in Kamabaka

to supply a total of 22.4 MW. It is possiblt: that during thc ycar wc may produce surplus cncrgy

and suppty the surplus energy to otht'r Companies / tndustri({i hast'd on demand.

Molasses is the visrous product re.sultant of refining suganant. juiet'. Ivlolasses, whith forms the

primarv raw matcrial for the distill(.ry unil, is formentetl, tlistillt'cl and made to undt'rgo various

processes for making rec[fied spirit and txba nextaal spirit. R{tified Spidt is processed to

memufactu re Intlustrial Vinegar. Extra- Noutral spirit is furtlror processe.d for manufacturc of

IML products. The Extra-Neuhal spirit is blended to manufacture Whiskey which is sold by us

under our various brands like "Our Choice", "Your Choictr', tlistri('t-1 and VSL Black. Further

the *'aste water oxtracted from Distillt'ry unit is called as spentr4'ash which is further mixed

with mud kr form Compost / Orp,anic Manurq which is supplied hack to farmers for

cultivation of thoir fititis rvhich cnsurcs hig,hcr yie.lds. Furthcr thL. company has set up a CO2

plant a]so. Thus, wr'believe that nothing is wasted, as cvt:ry single output whethcr rcsidue or

hy-product is u tilist'd.

Opportunities and Threats:

Oppoftunities:

- Liberalisation and drontrol measures taken hy the Covemmflrl

- Environmenta.l friendly power g,eneration from co-generation units equipptrd with high

pressure boilers and turbines is getting maximum energy outpuL

- Bio-composting pr<resses and conve'rsion of organic and in-organic matter into bio-manure to

ensure zero dise harge from distillery.

- The Govemment of India is promoting Ethanol blending up to 10% and the oil Companies

have issuetl tendcrs for Ethanol zupply and have also revistd tht'ethanol prices.

-The interest rates have started coming down.

- The Govemment of India has approved National Bio-fuel Policy recently.

56



Threats:

The sugar industry presently is coming across the following threals:

- Falling sugir prices and no demand for the sugar due to bumper production of sug,ar. Thc

Central Govemment has announced 20 lakh MT minimum indicative export quotas (MIEQ) to

stabilise the Sugar price.

- Shortage in availability of farm laklur for harvesting and transportation, bading and

unloading of sugarcane.

- Continuous increase in FRP for the last 3 to 4 years has resulted in increase in tane

procurement price where as Sugar Price has gone much be,low of Cost of Production.

- lncrease in number of sugar factorrex in surrounding area and also increase in their crushing

capacity.

Sugar

During the Current Year the Company has crushed 5.06 Lakh MT of sugar canc (as against 3.10

Lakh MT during previous yeur)and produced 7.34 lakh Qtls of sugpr (as agalnst 3.?l QtIs of

sugar during previous year) at the recovery of ll.l3%. The crushing during the vear has

increasecl substantinlly almost double as compared to last year. This is mainly bet-ause of good

rain during Octoher last year which has also resulted in inr:rease in recovery and output per

aLre.

Industrial and Potable Alcohol:

The Compary has sold 4753.59 lakh of Industrial and Potable Alcohol during the year (against

the last year sales of i1831.11 Lakh.) Overall production has remained stahle.

Co-generation:

We have genr:rated 588.37 takhKwpower during the yt'ar (as against 557.91 lakh cluring

previous year) and have exportod 327.n bW KW of powcr during the year (as against 385.1+

Lakh KW during previous year). The power g,eneration and export of powt'r havt'improved

substantially due to increase in crushing, we have e'ntered into Power Purchase Agreement for

supply of power to Elecuic Supply Companits (ESCOMS) i.e HESCOM, BErOM, GESCOM,

MESCOI!'! and CESCOM.

Adequacy of Intemal Contmt

The Company has a proper and adequate systern of intemal control to ensure that all assets are

safeguarcled and protected. The lnternal Auditor submits report covering a-lmost all the areas of

operations.
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Human Resources Development:

The Company provides rep,ular training and all round uposure Lo the employces and staff. The

Company has staff Quarte6 and guest house.

The Company has a dedicated workforce of 951 ptrplt.



REPORT ON CORPOITATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on Code of Governance:

Your Company n'mains committed to thc conc('pt of good corporatc llovemance practiccs in all
iLs activities to cnsure thc ultimate goal of making the Company a value driven oro,aniation.

Ourt.orporate gov(tmance philosophy is based on the folkrwing principles:

Satisry the spirit of tht'law and not iust the lctter of thc law. Corporate govorn rnce

standards should go kryond Lho law.

Bc transpa(rnt and maintain a high degree of disclosure levels. When in doubt, clisclost

Make a clt'ar distinction betwer:n personal t onvenicnces and corporate r(.sourc6

Communicate ertemally in a truthful manner, atxrut how the Comparny is run ink'rnally

Comply with the laws of the country in which we opl'rate

Have a simple:rnd transparent corporate structuft) drivcn sokrly by business notrls

Management is the trustt* of tk' shareholders' capital and not the own('r.

We havo tx,en making const ious eff<rrts to institutionalizo Corporato Govemance practi(os and

we heliove that it shall go heyond adherence to tho rogulatory framework. Our corporatc

structure, business and diselosure practices have tren alig,ned to our Corporate Covemarnce

Philosophy. We will continuously L'ndeavor to take forward the best practiccs to mhance

stake-holder's valuo.

Wc also t'ndeavor to enhance long term shareholders value and r(\ipect minority rights in all

our husiness tlerisions. Ovcr the y(?rs, gov('rrumco prft'esses and syste'ms havt' trtn
strengthencd and institutionalizBd at Vishwaraj Sugar lndustries Ltrl. Efftrtive implementahon

of theso policies underprns thc commitme-nt of the Company to uphold hiflhest principles of

Corporatc Govern.rnce consistent with Lhe Company's gpal to e.nhancc shareholder's value.

Our Board of Dirtrtors is at thc core of our (orporate governance practices and ovcrsrt's how

the Management serves and prote( ts tfie lonlJ term inter$Ls of all our stakeholders. We bclieve

that an active, we.ll informed and independmt Board is nettssary to slsure highct standards of

corporat(' gpvernance.
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Composition

Our Board of Dire(tors has an opl.imum combination of exet'uhvc and non-exeru live

dire.ctors. Thert'are 10 dinr..tors on tht Boarcl, out of whir'h 3 aro Exet-utivc (promoter)

Dire( tors, I Extcutive Dircctor, 1 Dirul.or is Non-exe(utive (Promoter) and 5

dirc,t-krrs arc Non-exu-ul.ive lntlt pendent Directors which includc+; one woman

dire( t()r.

Board Meetings and att€ndance

The Board mc(,ts at least once in a quartcr to rcvi('!t,the quarterly rcsults and to
transact the othcr ittrns on agcnda. Atlditional mtttings are held as and when

necessary. It is cnsured that thc intervenintl Bap ktwoen any two conktutive Boarcl

Mt]lrLings is within the Jx'riorC prost'rihed undt'r the provisions of the Companits Act,

2013.

. Thc Company Sttreta y propa cs the a gnda for ea h mc€ting,/ crlong with
explanatory notr's, in r'onsultation with th(' Managing Dim'tor antl cir.ulat('s the

same in advantc to thc Directors.

. Evt ry Board memk'r is free to suggtst additional itt'ms for inclusion in the age'nda.

Presontations are madc on tusin(ss operations to tht'Board by thc CAO and other

Funt tional Heatls.

. Thc lr'linutes of the pr(x'oedings of the Mu'tings an'notcd and the draft Minutes are

circulated am()nlJst the memtrrs of tht, Board for tlreir porusal and feedtuck.

Commrnts, if any, ra t'ivetl from the Dire( tors arc re(ord('d in tlte Minutos, in

consulLltion with the Chairman of the Mtr,ling. Minuteis are signt'd thercaftcr.

. I'nior manall('mtnt personncl a rt' invitt'tl kr prov itlt' a dtlitional inputs for tho itt'ms

trinl', tliscussotl by the Brurd as and v,,hen n(rcssary.

During thc yt ar under rcvieu., rt Board of Dirt't k)rs met 9 Limcs i.o. on 086 May,

2017,01't Jtly,2077,106 July, 2{117,76r' AugusL 28s Augusl., 2017, 30} September,

2O1r-, 2t$, Novt'mber, 2017,78l+' Dtr:emk'r, n77,27t March 2018. The maximum
interval betwu'n any two hoartl m(,etings tltx,s not excttd 120 days.

Tht composition of thc Board of tho Dicr-l.ors, thcir attcndancc at Boartl Mortings durinlS thc.

year antl at thc last Annual Gcnt.ral Met'tin11 and numk-r of diroctorships hcld hy thr.m rn other
companios arc givt'n trkrw;

Name of tht,

Direct0r
Category Numtxrr

of Board

\thr'thcr
attonr.k'd

Nutrrher of

Diroe torships
CommitLtt
Positions #

0

BOARD OF DIIIECTORS



meetinf,s

attr,ndod

last

ACM
of otler

comPani(rs

(a)

Chaimran M om tx.r

Umesh Vishrvanath

Katti
Charrman 9 Ycs 3

Nikhil Umesh K.ttti Managing
Direc k)r

9 Yt's 3

Lava Ramcsh Katti Wholt'Timt,
Dir( tor

9 Ycs

Kush Ramesh Katti Whok, Timc
Dlrector

Ycs

Ir,le likarlun
Kadayya Pujar

Wholc Timc

Dire(-t0r

9 Yls

Surendra

Shantavrcr Khot
Indep('ndent 7 Ycs

Pratibha Pramotl

Munnolli*
Intlt'pondt nt + Yes

Basavaraj Veerappa

Hagaragi"

Intlepondent + Ycs

Shivanand

Basavanneppa

Tubachi*

Indepondt.nt { Ycs

Vcnkatir

Radhakrishra
Racharla"""

Intlepr.'ndent I No 1

Srinivas Kouialgi* Indepcndent + Nu

Sheela Umesh

Katti**

Dire.ctor J Yt's

Notes:

(a) Other Directorships include both private rs well as Public Limited Companies.

* Appointetl as Director at the 22nd Annual Ceneral Meeting of the Company hcld on 30

September, 2017.

** Resigned from the officc of Direltor w.c.f 30 Scptcmk:r,2017 and' 2O November, 2017.

*** Appointed as Dmr:tor at the Extra-Ordinary Cencral Meeting of the Company held on lttth

December,2017.

Board Agenda

M*,tings arc govemecl by a sLructurt'd agenda. The Boartl memh'rt in consultation

with thc Chairman, may bring up any maLt r for thc considcration of thc Board. All
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sip;nificant ap,cnda itcms arc baekcd by compn'.hensivt- backg;ound information to

enable tho Board to takc inlormcd duisions.

Availability of information to Board members

Thc Board of Dircctors of thc Company is appristrl of all the nrlevant information and

dovelopmcnls portaining to thc Company's business and this fa.ilitates tht'm to takt'

timely corporatt' dtrisions.

Thc Boartl of Dire(tors has romph'tt. a((tss t(, all tht'information that is within the

Companv. Al. the m(xtings of the Boarrl, tht scnior ('x( utivt*i anrl if required, even

functional managers, whrr riln prrvide in-cltpth insillht into the ag,enda itemt are

hcing invitt-d.

AUDIT COIVIMITl'EE

Composition

Your Company has a qualfid ard indopendont audit (ommittq' comprising of two

Indt'pentltrrt dir{tors and one promotcr non-ext-tuhvo dlruk)r constituted in
at'r ordan<t, with thr'provisions of arction 17 of the Companit's Act 2013.

Name Designation

I Mr. Shivanzurd Tubat hi Chairrn.rn

2 Mr. R.V. Radhakrishna Itlemtx'r

j Mr. Umcsh Katti lvlemtx'r

Thc Company s(\ retary is the anretary of the committe'.

b. Meetings alrd attendance during the year

Thr. Audit Committet'met -l tim(5 during the financial year 2017-1tl on 86 May,2017,
28s Augu s! 2017, 

.l8tt' 
Dect:mher, 2077, antl 27*. March, 2018.

S.

No
Name No

held
year

of meetings
during the

No of meetings
attended

I N,[ r. Shivanancl Tuhachi -l )

62

S. No



2 Mr. R.V. Rad hakrishna + 2

3 Mr. Umesh Katti -i +

c. 'feflns of Reference

The k'rnrs of rcfercnt t' of thc Audit Committu, iire as per thc S€rtion 777 of Lhp

Companitr AcL 2013 and inclutle such other functions as may tre assigned to it by thp

Boartl from time to time.

. To invostitlate any achvity within its terms of reft'renct'.
r To seek information from anv empkrvsr
. n) obtain outside loggl or other proftsstrnal advitt
. To st't'ure attendancc of outsidcrs with rolevant expertise, if it consitlers

n({essary.

a) Ovorsig,ht 0f the lssuor's financi;rl rcportinp, prrxr:ss and the tlisrlosurc of its financial
informdti(rr [o ensurc t]tat thc financial statem('nl is rorrr'ct, suffi(ient and cn'tlihlt'.

b) Recommt'nding to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if requircd, tho

replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and &e fixation of audit feeli.

c) Approval of payment to stahltory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

d) Rr.vit'win1i, with the manalpmcnt, the annual financial sl.atemonts tefore sutrmission to the'

hoard for approval, with partir'ular rt fercnce to:

/ Matters rcquirc'd to bt'included in the Dira'tor's Responsibrlity Statement to tX'included

in thc Board's rcport in terms of clausc (c) of sutrsertion 3 of Section 134 of the

Comp::nit's Ac! 2013

/ Chang,es, if any, in acr:ounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

r' Maior accounting entries involving estimates based on the ext'rcisc of judgrnert by

manag,emeTlt

/ Significant adiustmenls made in the financial statementrs arising out of audit findings

/ Compliance with listing and other legal requirt'menLs relating to financial sLaternents

/ Disclosurc'of any related party [ansa(tions
/ Qualifications in the draft audit report.

i) Powerc of the Audit Committee

J

ii) Role of the Audit Comnrittee



e) Revit'wing, wit}l the manag,cment, tht' half yearly fin;rncial sLat('ments tx'forc submission to

the txrard for approval

f) Revien,ing, with the managemcnt, th('stat('ment o[ usts / applir'ation of funtls raised through

an Offcr (public issuc, righl.s issue, preforential issuo, otc.), tho statcmont of funds utilized for

purposes other than th<x;e statt'd in the offer dot umcnt/prosp{tus/ notic(' and lhe report

submitted hy tht'monitoring agon.y monikrring the utilization of prtreetls of a public or rig,hs

issue, and making appropriate rocommcndations to the Board Lo takc up ste.ps in this mattor.

g) Review and notlitor the auditor's independenee and pt rfomrance, and effcctivt'ness ofaudit
process;

h) Approval or an), suhsequent modification of transactions o[ thc company with rclatcd

parties;

i) ftrutiny of inter-corporatc loans and investmenLs;

i) Valuation of undcrtakings or asslLs of thc companv, whcrevcr it is n(ressarv;

k) Evaluation of inkmal finarncial controls and risk managcmtnt systcms;

1) Reviewing, with the mirnagemcnt, performancc of statutory and inLemal auditors, adequacy

of the intemal control systems.

m) Reviewing the adcquacy of intemal audit function, if any, including the structure of the

inLt rnal aur.lit departm('nt, staffing and seniority of tht' official heading thc departrnent,

reporting structurt: coveragc antl frtquenty of ink, nal audlL

n) Drscussion n,ith intcrml auditors any sigpificiurt findings and follow up thtxc on.

o) Reviewing thc findings of arny intemal investrgatrons by the intemal auditors into matters

where there is suspdted flaud or furegularity or a failure of internal control svstems of a

material natu(r and reporting the matter to the board.

p) Discussion with statutory audibrs tefore the audit commcncet ahout the nature and scope

of audit as we.ll as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of conct'm.

q) To kxrk into thc reasons for sutrstantial dcfaulLs in tho pavment to thc dopositort debenturp

holdt'rs, sharcholtlt'rs (in cast, of non-paymont of declilrod divid('nds) and cn ditors.

r) To rcview tht, functioning of thc whistle blowcr mt'chanism.

s) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., thc whole-time Finance DtNtor or any other percon
ht'adin11 the finanee function or dist hiuging &at funr'tion) afl.or assssing the qualifications,
experience & background, ok'. of tht'canditlate.

t) Carrying out any othor function as is montionr'd in Lho Lcmls of reft'rencc of the Audit
L ommrtte
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The Autlit Committcc dischargm its functions arrd obligations on reg,ular basis and on thc
o(curron( e o[ lhe ev(nts.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

a. Composition

S. No Name Designation

I Mr. Basavaraj Hagargi Chairm;rn

2 Mrs. Pratibha Munnolli Mcmher

3 l\lr. Surcnd ra R. Khot lvl cnr tx.r

The Company strretary is the strretary of the committe-c

b. Meetings and attendance during the year

The said committre met two time; during the tinancial year 2015-15 i.r'. on 18th

Det emkrr, 2017 .

S

No
Name No

held
year

of meetinBs

during the

No of meetings

attended

I Mr. Basavarai Hagargi 1 1

2 Mrs. Pratihha Munnolli I 1

3 i\'lr. Surontlra R. Khot I I

( Tenns of reference

Formulation of thc rdteria fol determining qu;ilifications, positive attributes and

indt'pmdence of a dire( tor and recommentl to tht' Board a policy, relating to the

remuneral.ion of the dircctors, key mernagerial pcrsonnt'l and othcr employ()s;

Formulation of criteria for evaluahon of Intlependent Dirfttors and thc Board;
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Dcvisinl', a polity on Boartl tliver.;ity

ldcntifying pt'rsons $'ho arc qualified to be{'ome diroctors and who may he

appoink'd in st'nior managt m€nt in accordan(:c with the (ritcria laid dowru and

rt'commcnd kr thc Board thpir appoinBnont and removal. The (ompany shall

tlisclost, the remuncration policy and tho evaluation critcria ln its Annual

Rcport.

perform such olher activitios as may tc delef,ated by the Board or sperified/
providetl undt'r Lhe Companics Ae t,2013 or by the SEBI Listing Regulations or

by any other regulatory authority.

d. Remuneration Policy

Remunciation of the Executivo Diroctors is tieterminetl periodically hy the

Nomination and Rt,munt,ra[on Committee within the pcrmissihle limits under thc

applicable provisions of law and as approved by thc Board of Dtuectors and

sharehokltrs. The remunorati(xr of tht' Ext'tutivt' Dirttors is within the ceiling

limit taitl down under Ser'tion 197 of the Act of the Companies Act,20l3.

Our rcmunt,ration policy is tlriven \ the success and performance of the

managgrial person. Our Remuneration Policy for Directors, Kcy managerral

Personncl antl othcr empkryees forms part of the Annua! Re.ptrrl..

e Details of remuneration paid during the financial year ended Ma(h 31, Z)18 to the
Directors.
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into account the following:

. Financial position of thc Cumpany

. Sr'a]es prcvailing in the industry

' OPPortunitic
. Appoinbds qualification and expertise
. Past pcrformance
. Past remuneration etc.



1. Executive DirP(tors

2. Non-ExecutiveDire(tor

Name Designation Remuneration paid for the
financial year 201F15 (in Rs.)

Martnun
permissible

tetnuterati on

Actral pnid /
paynble

Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti Managing
Dir(rtor

Rs.3.tX) Lakhs por

month
Rs.l16.(X) Lakhs

lr4 r. [ava Ramesh Katti Wholt Time
Dir(\'t()r

Rs.2 Lakhs pcr
montlr

Rs.2-1.00 Lakhs

N'l r. Kush Ramesh Katti Whole Time
Dt('ctor

Rs.2 Lakhs per

month
Rs.2{.00 Lakhs

Mr. Mallikarlun Kadalya
Pujar

lltrole Time
Dirt'r tor

Rs.0.75 Lakhs per
nrond.r

Rs.9.(X) Lakhs

Name of the Director Sitting fees Rs. Commission Rs,

N'lr. Surt'ndra Shantav(\.r Khot 0 0 0

Mn. Pra tibha Pramotl

Munnolli
0 0 0

Mr. Basavaraj Vtt rappa

Hagaragi

() () 0

Mr. Shivanand Basavanncppa

Tuhachi

t) 0 0

Mr. Venkata Radhakrishna

Racharla

0 0 ()
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S. No Name Designation

1 Mr. Shivanand Tubachi Chairman

2 Mr. Lava. Katti l\4t,m hor

3 Mr. Nikhil Katti Ir,[cmht'r

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

a, Composition:

b

The Compar.ry SttrL'Liry is lhe str retary of the Cornmil.tr€

Roles and Responsibilities of Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

To supt'rvist' anll t'nsurr':

a) Alkrtmerrt antl listing of our shar<x; in futurt'

h) Rt:dressing of shart'holdcrs and investor complaints such as non-receipt of declared

dividend, annual reporL transfer of Equity Shars and issue of

duplicate/ split/r'onsolidated share certificatcs;

c) Monitoring hansfers, transmissions, tlematerialization, rc-matcriali:ration, splitting
and consolidation of Equity Sharos and otht'r securitit's issuod by our Companv,

including rcview of caxs for refusi of transfer/ transmission of shares and debentures;

tl) Rcforenco t() sl-atutory and rc1;ulatory authoriti('s ('garding invostor lgicvirn(os;

e) T<l otherwise ensure proper and timely attendance and n{ressal of investor queries

and grievances;

f) And to do all such acts, things or decds as may be necessary or incidental to the

exercise of the ahove powers.

g) ovcrseeing tho performance of the registrars and transft'r ag,ents of our Company ancl

[o re( omm(,nd mt'asult's for ol't'rall improvcmt-nt in the quatity of invrstor services; and

h) carrving out such other functions as mav be sptt'ifitrt by the Board from time to time
or s;x'cified/ provided undcr thc Companitx Act, 2013 or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by
any other rog,ulatory authority.
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C Details of investor complaints rereived and redressed during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAI- RESPONSIBILI'IY COM MII"I'EE

a. Composition

Tht' Corporate Strial Rc-sponsihility Committr,o has been formerl pursuant to
Set tion 135 of the Companies Act,2013 comprising of One Non-Executire
lndepe.ndcnt Direck)rs, One Non-Ext'cutive Director (Promoter) ;rncl Onc
Exe(utive Promoter Dire( tor:

S. No Name Designation

The Company Serrctary is thc st,crol.ary of tlr(' committ(\'

b. Meetings and attendance during the year

Thc said committec met two times during the financial yoar 20:7-18 i.e. on 18u.

Dcremkrr,20l8.

Nature of (omplaints Year 2017-18

Rt'r-eivt'tl Resolved Pending

Total complaints t\ lt N-il Nil

Category

1 I\4r. Umcsh V. Katti Chairrnan Non-Exccutivc and

Intleponder.rt

) l\'tr. Kush R. Katti Momtx'r Non-Extt-uLivt ancl

lndep('nd('nt

Mrs. Pratibha ll'lunnoll i l\,[om tx'r Promoter and

Executive

S

No

Nam€ No
held
year

of meetings
during the

No of meetings
attended

1 Mr. Umesh V. Katti I l

2 Mr. Kush R. Katti I I

3 Mrs. Pratibha N'lunnolli I I
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{. Terrns of referEnce

a) Formulate and r(\'orunend Lo tho Board, a Corporate Social Rc;ponsibility

Policy whit h shall indicate the a( tivitics to be undertakon by our Company rn

at t ordanct' n ith the provisions of tht Companits Ae t, 2013;

b) Reviot and rccommend th<'amounl. of t:xpondituro to bc incurred ()n

activitir's to he undertaken by our Comp;ury;

c) Monitor the Corporatr' Social Rtsponsibiliry Polity of our Company and its

implemenLation from timr. kr timei and

d) Ary other matter as the Corporabe Smial Responsibility Commitkr may deem

appropriak) afLcr approvarl of thc Board of Diroctors or as mav bc dircrtcd by the

Board of Directors from timc to time.

DISCLOSURES

None of the tr.rnsactions with the rclattd partits is in conflict with the interest of thc Company.

The companies'major related party transactions aro generally with ils Associates. A related

party transactions are negotiatcd at arm's lcngth basis and are intended to further the interests

of the Company.

SHAREHOLDING PAT'I-ERN AS ON 31'| MARCH 2018

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the €nd of the yearr

Demat Phvsical t otal
Vo of Total

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) lndian

a) Ind ividual/ H UF i) 6ttlqx) I t5l 900 33.r.r1%

b) Central Covt.or State Govt.

c) Bodit's Corporatcs

d) Bank/ Fl

e) Any othor

SUB TOTAL:(A)(1) 0 I l5{ 9U) 1r681900 33.81%

(2) F-oreign

a) NRI- hdividuals

h) Otht'r Ind ivrd uals
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r) Bodits Corp.

d) Banks/ Fl

(,) Any othor.

SUB TOTAL:(A)(2) 0 0 0 0

Total Shareholding of Promoter (A)=
(AX1)+(AX2)

0 1.16{11qx)
'l l6l qI) 33.81%

B, I'mmoter group

(1) lndian

a) lndiviilual/HUF 0 6vr5350 6}j5350 2().2.+'r"

h) Ccntral Covt.or Stat(' G0vt.

c) Bodit's Corporates

d) Bank/ Fl

o) Anv otht'r

SUB'IOtAL:(R)(1) 0 6q)5150 6rir515t) 2\t.21 |.

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

h) Other lndivtluals

t ) Botiics Corp.

11) Bi:nks/ Fl

c) Any other...

SUB TOTAL:(B)(2) 0 0 0 0

Total Sh.reholding of Promoter (B)=

(Ax1)+(Ax2)
0 6(,5350

C. PIJtsLIC SI{AREHOLDINC

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funtls

h) Banks/ FI

C) Cenntral govt

tt) State Govt.

c) Vcnturc Capital Funcl

f) lnsurancc Companies

1) FllS

h) Foroilp \i (-nture Capital Funds

i) Others (spu ify)

SUB TOTAL:(C)(1)

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodios c0rporat(s

i) inclian

ii) Overseas

h) Incl ividuals

i) Individual shareholders holding

nominal share capital upto Rs.1 ltikhs
0 6.954650 6tt5{650 19.{.t-+7,

1

6qi535t) 20.2+ !"



0 e02+100 90241(n 26."1"1%

Name & Desienation of the Comoliance f)fficer: Ms. Sncha P Pat

Company Set'retary

Ann rra I Ceneral no f)alp and Tinrp: Thursday,2Th Scptt:mk'r, 2018 at {.00 P.M

Venue Bcllatl Bagt'u,atli Taluk:: Hukkt'ri
Distri( t Bolgaum Karnataka 591.105,

Address for c ITEsoondence: Comptrny Se(retary

Vishrvaraj Sugar Industrics Limited

Bellad Bagewadi Taluk: Hukkerl
Dlstri( t Belgaum krnatala 591305

Phone:08333-5125'l
Fax :0tt333 - 251251

Emarl: cs@vsil.co.in

\,V t'hsi tt': o.l 11

Bt'llatl Ballowatli Talu k: : Hukkeri
Distri( t Bolllaum Kdmataka 591305

RECISTRAIT & I'RANSFER AGENTS: BIGSHARE SERYICES PvI. LTD.
E-2 Ansa lndustdal Estate, Salivihar Road,

Saki Naka, Andheri (East), Munthai4Ot[72

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:

The Company has cntr.rt rl into Tripartite Agrt'cmcnLs witlr tirtr Nati0nal Secu rilies Dcpoiitory
Limitt'd (NSDL). Htnte, the Comptmy's shares are availablc [or dematt'rialization in National

ii) tndividuals sharcholderu holding
nomin:rl shart, capital in txeess of Rs. 1

lakhs

c) Others (spocify)

SUB TOTAL:(CXz) 15rJ7tt750 1587n750 45.95%

Total Public Shareholding (C)=

(cx1)+(cx2)
0 15tt7tt750 15ti7tt750 +5.95v;

D. Shar€s held by Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

() 0 () 0

Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 0 3+556(n0 315560&) 1U).fi)9;

2

CENERAL STIAREHOLDER INFORNIATION

Reeistered Office:



DECLARATION OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF
CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Your Company has adopted a CODE OF CONDUCT OR ETHICS POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENI This codt, is applicahlt'k) all the mt'mtx:rs of tht'Buard, scntrr
manag,ement of thc Company i.e all mt-mlrt'rs of mamap,emert ont' lt'vel trekrw thc Execuhvo
dinx tors, inclutiing all gcncral manageni antl functional ht'ads.

I, Nikhii Um*h Katti, Manaliing Director of Vishwaraj Sugar Industrios Limitt'd hon'by rlc.rlaro

that all the boartl members antl u:nior managerhl personncl havc affirmed compliancc with thc
codo of conduct of the Company laid down for thern for thc year untlt'r 31"t March,201tl

For and on behalf of tho Board

Nikhil Umesh Katti

Managing Director

Date 28.08.2)18

Place: Bellad Bagewadi

J
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO'
THE MEMBERSOT

VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

effectivcly design, irnpl,ernentatirm and maintenancc of adequate intemal fmancial controls,

that were operating for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are fiee fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

Aurlilur's Rcspursiiriiiiy

Our responsibility is. to exprcss an. opinion on these stardalone Ind AS. financial statenents

based on our audit.We have taken into account the provisions ofthe Act, the accounting and

auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions ofthe Act and the Rules made here under.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the

Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obkin reasonable

assurance about wherher the financial statcmcnts arc frcc from material misstat€ment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the tor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

o
M N0.020227

Fnl i/0. 0009415
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Report on the Standalone Finsncial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements of
VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED ("the Company), which comprise the

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

Comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows

Statement for the year then ended. and a summary ofthe significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information(hereiafter referred to as "the standalone Ind AS financial

statement").

Management's Responsibility for the Ind-AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act,2013 ("the act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind-

AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss

(including Other Comprehensive income), changes in Equity and cash flows of the Company

in accordance with the accounting principles ganerally acceptd in India, including the Indian

Accounting Standards (lnd-As) specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.
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Charlered Accountants

statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether

the company has in place an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial

reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofthe accounting

estilnates nade by tiie Coiiipaiiy's riiariager rlerit aud Buard of Directors, as *-ell as evaluating

the overall presentation ofthe Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

oiven tn rrc tha ctanrlalnnc Tnd AS financial strtcmerrlc oirrc the infnrmetinn rcnrrired hw thcF' '" '-
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the lnd AS of the state of alTairs of the

Company as at 3lst March. 2018, its loss (including Other Comprehensive income), its changes

in Equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters:

The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended 3lstMarch,20l7

and Transition date opening balance sheet as on I't April, 2016 included in these Standalone

Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements

prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by

the then auditors as on 3 l't March.2017 and l'rAprit,2016 and their reports for the year ended

3l't March.2Ol7 and 31't March.2016 dated 28th August. 2017 and 286 August. 2016

respectively expressed unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Emphasis of Metters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Ind AS financial

statements:

o\ TL^ n^..lini !iticrri^-" +L-+ .l^-^;L^. A lL^ .^'.^ l"^. L--- ,l:-^l^--l :- +L^ \r^}a ,42 /n\x,, r rr! yw.rqur6 rltr54.rvrrr au .ru rru.--ir \v/
of notes to accounts to the Balance sheet :-

Sl.No Particulars Rs. In Lakhs
I High Court, Kamataka, Appeal for Purchase Tax 290.0s

2 Central Excise. Belgaum Show Cause Notice 88.16

3 Central Excise, Bangalore (Appeals) 637.t6
Centrai Excise, M A 134.29S

b) The Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concem

UR 4

M.N0.020

FiN N0.00094i5
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basis.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 ('lhe order") issued by the

Govemment of India in terms of sub section (11) of Section 143 of the companies Act
2013,we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraph (3)

and (4) ofthe order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) ofthe act we report that:

a) Wa heve cnrroht nnd obtained all the informatill and evnlenations which tn thF best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our cxamination ofthose books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of changes in

Equity and statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
L^^1.- ^f ^^^^,.-+

d) In our opinion, the a resaid standalone Ind AS hnaneial statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Scntinn lAd /?\ 

^frha 
A.t

0 With respect to the adequacy of intemal financial control over the financial reporting

of the company and the operating etl'ectiveness of such controls, ret'er to our separate

report in " Annexure B" and

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
.^ +L^ L^^. ^f ^..-:-f^*^+:^- ^-l ^^^^-,1:-^ ]^ +L^ ^.,-l^-^+:^-^ -:,,^- +^ ,,^.

ts ru ru! v^Pr(1r1.auwuo tsr I \,u Lt, us.

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statemcnts Rcfcr notc (a) undcr

'emphasis of matters' under Audit report.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including Derivative

contracts for which there were anv malerial foreseeable losses to the financial

statements;

iii. There are no any instances during the audit period wherein the amount is

required to be transferred to the 'lnvestor Flducation and Protection Fund'hy the

company' 
,.As per our report of even datert

For, M/s Gojanur & Co,,

UR rtered Accountants

o &a
Drte: 28-0&2018

Place: Shivamogga

. M. Channappa Setty)

Proprielor
9d CO

M.No.02C227

tRN No.000941S

SHIVAMOGGA

M. No: 020227
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I

ANNEXUREA TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure Referred To In Our Independent Auditor's Report To The Members

Of The "Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited" On The Standalone Ind As Financial

Ststements For The Period Ended 3l't March,2018, We Report That:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including the

quantitative details and the situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us the fixed assets have been

physically verified by the Management during the year in a periodical manner which in

orr opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its

business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination ofthe records ofthe Company, the title deeds of immovable propefties are held in

the name of the Company and are deposited with Bank of Indiq State Bank of India, and

BDCC Bank.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us the inventory has been

physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion the frequency of
verifi cation is reasonable.

In our opinion the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the
:-- -^l-r:^-- 1^ rl-^ -:-- ^f .L- rr----..^---. --llllitnagglnglt <ir c lE4sulldDlE .uiu ausr{u419 ut lgr4trurr tu ulg }rzc ul nrE \-urrrPill} illlu

the nature of its business.

(b) Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and there is no material

discrepancies noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted following advances during the year to parties covered

in the register maintained under section I 89 ofthe Companies Act, 2013

Direetor Nature of Advances Amount (in Lakh Rs.)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has not granted any loans and not made any investments, or provided

securities & guarantees to companies and other parties listed under section 185 and 186

of the Cornpanies Act, 2O13.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the

company has not accepted Deposits from public hence the directives issued by the

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant

provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with
regard to the deposlts accepted trom the publlc are not apphcable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant

to the Rules made by the Central Govemment for maintenance of cost records

2

3

1

5

40.7El.Nikhil U Katti Cane Furchase Advance

52.472.Lava R Kafti Cane Purchase Advance

Cane Purchase Advance 57.243.Kush R Katti

M No.020227

FRN No. mC9415

SHIVAMOGGA
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prescribed under section 148( I ) of the Companies Act, 201 3 and are of

I

ed

k
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Chartered Accountanls

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the following amounts

payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at 31-03-2018 for a period of
more than six months fiom the date they became payable:

i. Purchase Tax ol Rs. 24,84,38,202.59 is outstiurding for the period more than six

months and Rs.93,19,199.00 is outstanding for the period less than six months, all

together Rs. 25,77,57,401 .59 but the Management has claimed interest free loan from

the State Govemment and the same is eligible for conversion into interest free loan.

and the same is pending with Gou.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the

company has not defaulted in rcpayment ofdues to a financial institutions.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial
n,,hlin nffer nr 6,aher h,'hli. 

^ffFr innlrrdin. rlchr insrnrrnenrc a.d ro'.m I ^"ns
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company and hence not commented upon.

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company

by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

ll. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

exernination of the books of account, records, and explanations given by the
management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance

with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act;

I- ^..- ^-:-;^- .L^ /-^'.-^-., :- -^. ^ \l:.ll.: rr^--^-., 'rl^-^a^-^ .L^ --^.,:^:^-^ ^ar rrwt!lur!. rrr! yrurrriLrrir vi
clause 4 (xii) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion. all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
2013 and the details have been disc the

./-,dM No.020227

FRN NO. OOCB4IS

SHIVAMO6GA

177 and 188 of Companies Act,

o 4rs

.4

@) GOJANUR & CO.,

Prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

However we have not made a detailed examination of the same. And the same have

been audited by independent cost auditor.

(a) According to intbrmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally

regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees

State Insurance. lncome-Tax. Sales tax- Service Tax- Drrtv of Customs. Dutv of
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate

authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed

amounts payable in respect of the above were in anears as at March 31,2018 for a

period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable

L

9.
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Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (lnd-

AS).

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, records, and the company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible

debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions ofclause 3 (xiv)
^f+L^ A-I^- ^-^ -^+ ^--l:^^Lt^.^ .L^ /-^*-^-., ^-I L^-^^ -^. ^^*-^-.^l ,,-^-vr rrrl \-rrsrr <u9 rruL.rPyrr!4url ru !rr! \-urrrP.!rJ .ulu rrr.rr!! lrr,r r\,rrurNrrlru upurl.

Based upon the audit procedues pertbrmed and the furformation and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence

not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under seclion 45 IA ofthe
Reserve Bank of tndia Act, 1934 ard accordiflgly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

"As per our report of even date"
For, M/s Gojanur & Co.,

rtered Accountants
UR 4. : 000941S

(,..,g

Date:28-08-201E

Place: Shivamogga

M. Channappa Setty)

roprietor

M. No: 020227

t 'll t t * * * * * * * f,,i * t ** * * * * * * * * ** * * * * * * * ** * * * * * * * ** t,f * * * * * ** * ** * * ** ** * f ** * * *l t * *

M.N0.020227

tRN N0.000941S

ueA;

16)

5H



GOJANUR & C
Chart€red Accountanlt

o

ANNEXURE (B)

(Referred to in paragraph (l) under 'Report on Oth$ Lcgal and Regulatory Requirements' section olour reporl of cven date)

REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANACIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (D OF SUB

SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF COMPANIES ACT,2013.

NUR
a)

[i.lio.0202,

tili No. 00094iS

SIiIVAMO6GA

misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fiaud or enor.

d A,,

r@
Propdoiq :

GA o.T.C}IA"}IAPPASETW
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ll/. hai/. arrrlitarl rha intamal ffnanaial annrrnlc nvar ffnanniol ronnrtinn nf SVISITIjVADA Ir LPvr tM.D v.

SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED" ("the Company") as of March 31.2018 in conjunction

with our audil of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year

cndcd on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

Tlrp f^maon.,'c 6ahadAhaht ic tccnnncihlo fnr pctahlichina onrl m.i-tci-i-o inr-melr rrr LvrurqrJ s rrr{reE!i,,!,,!

financial controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by

the Company sonsidering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company's policies. the safeguarding

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an ooinion on the Company's intemal financial controls

over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidarrce Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the

Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial

controis, both applicable to an audit of Inlemal Financial Controls and. both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurange about u,hether adequate intemal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the

adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting

irrcluded obtaining an tmderstanding of intemal financial controls over financid rcporting,

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of material
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system

over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

freparation of financial statements for exfemal pllr,noses in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation offinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of managernent and direclors of the company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material elYect on

the fi nancial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial

reporting, including the possibility ofcollusion or improper management override ofcontrols,
material misstatements due to error or fiaud may occr[ and not be detected. Also, projections

of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to furure periods

are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. an adequate intemal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018. based on the intemal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components

of intemal conrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

"As per our report of even date"
For, ivl's Gujanur & Cu.,

red Accountants

: 0009{lS

&
Date: 28-0&2018

Place: Shivamogga

Channappa Setty)
Act Proprietor

M. No: 020227
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VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BALA\CE SHEET AS AT 3I ST MARCH.2OIE.

"As per our report ofeven drlerl

l'or M/s. GOJA\I R & (lO

(0.00) (0.00)

For and on behrlfofthe Board

D ACCOT \T,\\I'S

(0.00)

k (Nikhil l. Kstti) (limesh

anaging l)ircclor
Dt\.025057.1.1

(l
., { t) 1050

d Acc
PRIETOR ,s

alOfficer
A,"M

Comprtry Sccrctrry

(€s.sr.h* Pdil)

o;

Perticulers
Notes

No,
As at 3lst Mrrch . 20lE As .t 3lsl Mrrch. 2017 As rt olst April, 2016

I

I
b

c

d

I

f
8

h

I

J

h

c

d

ASSE]S
NON-CI-IRRENT ASSETS

Property. Plant and Equipments

Capilal Work-in.Progress

lov.stmeot Property

Goodtrill

Other lntmsiblc.{!!ct!
lntsngible Assets under l)evelopment

Biological Assas other tbqo beater Plart

!'ins.ncisl Assets

Defercd Tax A$ets(n€0

Othef Non-Curent Assets

CURNENT ASSETS

lnventories

Finarcial assets

i.hvcsments

ii.Trade Receivables

iii,Cash & Cash Equivalents

iv.Bslk Balrlces

v.Loans ond Advances

vi.Others

Currsnt Tax Assets(Net)

Other Cunent Assets

7

)
2.71.88.19.814.20 2,40.69.43.146. r 5

38.34,54.640.70

2.44,13,22.382.70

1.28,82,218.00

+

5

6

2.13.44,72t.00

2.55.99.19.535.40

53.24,000.00

37.88.40.676.24

7 .45 .7 I .972.89

70.23.40.008.87

5.62.60,666.06

2.62.89.31U.25

I .11 .04.1 I .7 21 .92

37,98.000.00

45,92,00,982.98

t2,73,64,703.99

45.31 .97 .914 .78

4.97.65.103.50

2,63.1?,8 t8.25

2.39.97.51.032.84

37,65.000.00

t9.67 ,09.964.5 t

51.64-93.128.94

46.44.88.637.85

4.93.21 .846.30

TotrlAsscts 6,51,74,81,45.1.67 5,68,10,ti5,5J8.27 6,1I,10,52,029.39

I I

,
b

I

I

b

c

d

2

0

t

c

d

Eq!!TYAD_t!48&!IIE
Eouitv:

Equity Sharc Capital

other tsquir;-

LIABILITIES
NoD-Currcnt Liabilitirs

lhancial Liabilities

i,Bonowings

ii.Trede Paysbles

iii.other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Defened Tax Liabilities(Net)

Other Non-current l,iabilities

Currcot Lirbllltie!
!'inancial Liabilities

i.Bonowings

ii.Trade Payables

iii.Other Financial Liabilities

Other Cunert Liabilitics

Provisions

Cunent l ax Liabililies

34.55,60,000.00

2.06.4E. r r.El9.E4

37,01,07,575.00

34.55.60.000.00

2,09.60.97 .1u9 .44

10.01.36.E66.00

34.55,60,000.00

2.00.E3,09,305.40

20.85,76,611.00

l9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

3,10,99,168.00

28.0t.39.4E4.00

2,64.67 ,77 ,039 .9 |

26,86,38,8r.5.76

50.8 t.89.977.l6

2t ,57 ,57 5: .oo

2.11.91.202.00

23.82.71.465.00

2.16,66.16,680.28

rd34,35,712.2r

54.59.57 .462.34

2,32,1S,441.00

2.t7,29.772.00

21.21,8t,7 49.00

2.26,47,16.536.74

26,94,24,553.96

15.60.02.061 .29

2,45,51,440.00

Total Equitl snd Lirbilitics 6,51,7.1,81,45,1.67 5.68.10.E5.53E.27 6,1 I,10,52,029.J9

M.N0.010227

Plsce: Belgsum.

Detc: l&O8-2O18

U. \o. 02[227 '.r
h

Iiulk!rni)

3

1

8

9

l0

lt
t2

l3

l4

l5

t6

t7

t8

FRN N0.00C9415



VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRJES LIMITED
STATEME\T OT PRO]'IT AND LOSS

FOR THI ITAR ENDI:{G SISI MARCH , 2018.

Psnicuhrr
\otas
No.

A! .t 3l!t M.rch .

20lt
As.t 31st Mrrch,

20t7
Ai rt ollt April,

2015

I

.

B

INCOMf,
Revenue from operations

Other lncome

28

29

2,2t ,8t ,35 ,442.69

9.64,80,241.98

2,84.0 r.73.85 |.36

I ,05 ,62,762.33

3,35,64,6s,658.22

2.88.12.651.I
Totrl lncoma 2J1,,16,15,6t,1.67 2,85,07.J6,6l].69 1.38,53,3E,315.33

EXPf,NDITURf,

Cost of Materials Consumed

Purchase of Stock-in-trade

Change in Inventories of Finished goods,

Wo*-in-progress

Other Marufacturiry Expenses

Employee Benefn Expenses

Financ€ Costs

Depreciation & Amonisation Expenses

Other Expenses

30

ll

32

33

34

2&3
35

2,36.81.06.830.49

(78,07,75,8t3.40)

t3,53,14,41 t.98

12,96,30,060.45

20,83,42,8',t9.67

13,19,96,304.86

I1.13.98.88t.23

1,38,42,70.095.56

60,62,31,037.40

15,82,70,055.78

13,22,11,106.55

24,84,32,342.20

r r,53,47,353.69

9,20,96,502.47

2,36,81,81.944.l4

25,04,61-510.73

12,80,46,029.00

t7 ,92,2t ,603.25

r 1,33.96,092.41

10,26,38,354.69

Tot!l Expenses : 2,J0,,t0JJ,55S.27 2,73,58,58,.193.65 3J1,52,0.t,349.96

Prollt Before cr..pdolrl atrd

lltnordltr.ry laarDs rnd trt
Exceptional Items

Proflt Bcforc extrrorditr.ry it.ms & lr!
t:xtraordinary ltems

Profit Bcfore Trx
Tax Exponses:

-Cunent Tax (including Weallh Tax)

.Defe.red Tax Charge(Credit)

-MAT Credft Entitl€ment

Profil for lhe pcriod from cotrliouing operstirrns

Prolit/(Loss) from dilronlinucd op!rutions

T crpetrses of discoDtirued operotions

Profit/(Loss) fron discontinued operutiolls

(AIt.r Trx)

I,05,82,129.{0 11JE,7E,120.0{ 7,01,f,J,965.37

1,05,E2,129.,10 I I,3t,7t,I20.0.t 7,01,11,965.J7

r,05,82,129.10

2r,57,57.5.00

4,18,68,019,00

(2t,57,575.00)

I 1,38,78, t 20.0,r

2.32.18.441 0o

2,60,89,716.00

(2,32,18,441.00)

7,01,33,965.37

1,42,99,510.00

2,59,88,172.00

( 1,42,99,510.00)

t,1E,68,019.00 2,50,89,716.00 :,59,88,172.00

(].12,t5.tt9.60) t.77,8t,{04.0{ {..t1.t5.793.37

Profit for the period (3,12,ES,889.60) 8,77,EE,10r.0{ 1,41,15,793.37

i.ltems that will be reclassified tp Profit or loss

ii.lncome tax relating to itsms that will be

reclassilied to Profil or loss

'lotrl Comprehedsive lncome for the Period (3,12,E5,EE9.60) E,77.8E..t0{.0{ {,{1,{s,793.37

B.3ic Eernings Per Shsre of'.l0erch
(ln Rup€Gs)

Diluted Eernings Per Shrrc of'.10 erch
(In Rup.es)

l8

:8

(0.9r)

(0.9r)

2.54

2.54

1.28

1.28

M.N0.020227

"As p€r our rcporl ofcven d8te"

OJANTIR & CO.,
( ( oI \TA\TS

APPA SETT\')

lor and on behrlfoflhe Borrd

--_>
2

Plsce: Belgsum.

c

(Nikhil lr. Krni)
M&.gint Dircctor

DtN.025057J4

?<.L.
Chi1!) rtfil ofliccr

(ffcshrgiri Kulkrrri)

(l mesh

l) r05nL o

l)rte:28-08-2018

Ac
n2[221

.:Ii},il

(CS.Sn.hs Pstil)

Olhar Comprlhanrlva Incomc

i.lteEs thd will not be reclassified to Profi1 or loss

ii.lncome tax relating to items that \Idl not be

reclassified tp Profil or loss



Phcc: Ilclgsu IRN No. 00094ts

5N IVA]\106 GA

(0.0) (0.00)

For rtrd on bchrlf ofthe Borrd

(in Lallls)

0.00

(L'm.sh

C

05{}

VISIIWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED
STATEMENI OT CASH I'LOW

Figures io bEckets represent outflo$s

"As pcr our report of evcn drte.
for M/s. GOJANITR & CO

( .\Rl ERf,D.\( ( Ot \T.\
UR

M.No.020277

(\ifihil t. Kstti)

rDrgitrg Diractor
.DlN,0l50+734

A

,{.

l'or th€ yesr ended Ilrrch 31,

20tlt 2tt7 A! rt 0lstApril,2016

C!$h flolr from aDertting rcti}itie!:
Ner Pmfit before lax as per Profil And Loss accounl 105.t2 l.tJtt.Tlt 70t.1{
Adiusred for

Deprcciation & Amonisation 1.3t9.96 1,129.13 t.133.76

Dividend 3.40 4.30 002
ldterest & Financial Charges 2,083.43 2,484.32

Oper.titrg Profil B.forr \{orking Clpitrl Chsng.s t,512.62 {.756.5{ 1.627.J3

Adiusted for (hcrease)/ Decrease in

Trade Receivables 803 60 (2.624.9r) (650.58)

lnvcntories (7.894.48) 2,478.ll

Short Term Loans and Advances (Other than MAT Credit)
(2,485.03) 339.09 2,352.15

Other Curent Assets (64.96) (4.43) (7r.63)

Trade Payables t.252.03 (1.259.89) (2.867.63)

Shon Term Provisions (2t 1.00)

Long Term Provisions 93.08 0.61 101. t9

Other Non Currcnt Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities (317.61\ (2,100.45) (].07 t.88)

C.sh Ger.r.l.d From Opcrldors Bcforc Ertrr-
Ordirrry ltcm3 (sJ7r.El ) < tqa 1{ 1,900.06

Add:- Extra.Ordinar) ltems

Crsh Gencrrtcd From Operstions (5,371.61) 5.J99.JS 3.900.06

Direct Tar Paid 143.00 4. t3

Net Crsh flow froo(us€d in) Oper.ting Activiti.s: (A) (s,37r.81) 5.256.16 3.895.9J

( elh I lo$ [ rom l!restinq ,lctir ities:

Purchase of Fixed Assets (4.490.22) (836.15) (960.99)

Salc ofFixed n ssca 50 89 51 0l 12.79

Changes in Capital wlP (Net) 3,834.55 (3,705.72) 319.39

Investrnent in Shares ( 15.26) (0.33)

Changes in O$er Non Currenr Assets (lncluding opcning

Reserves Adjusled)
49 {5 0.28 58.98

Dividend Received (3.10)

(s7{.00)

4.30)

(.1,{95.{t )

(0.02)

(509.84)Net Crsh Flow from/(used in) lrvcsting Activities: (B)

Cssh Flotr from Iinrncins Actililies:
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowing 2.699.7 | (1,084.40) 0.320.39)

Increase / (Decrease) in Shorl Term Boraowing 4,t01.60 (98r.00) 3.28.37

Interest & Financial Charges (2,083.43) (2,484.32) (1,792.22\

Dividend and Dividend Distribution T&\ Paid ( r02.52) (3t4.35)

\et Cash flon from/(us€d in) finrncing Actilities ( ( ) 5,{t 7.Et (r,652.2'l) (2lJ.s8)

Nel lncrerse{Dccrcesc) in Crsh & Crsh Equirelcnts
(A+BiC)

(527.9J) (3,191.29) 3,t 72.51

Crsb & (lrsh tlquivrlents As At llcgifining of the ! crr 1,273.6{ 5.16{.91 1.992..1J

Crsh & Crsh Equivrlents As At Iod ofthe Ye.r 7 45.72 1,273.61 5.t6{.9{

r

d
::'.

Drtc:28-0&20

PROPRIETOR

\1. \o.020227

sgiri Kulkrrni) (CS.Sneh. Prtil)

P.rticulsrs

I

l
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VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Summrry of the !ignificsnt cccounting po licies flnd other exDlanrtory informfltion for the vear ended 3l March 2018

42 Rclrtcd prrty disclosures

As per lnd AS 24 "Related pan) Disclosures". disclosure oftransactions \\ith the related panies as

defined in the Accounting standad are given belqu:

a) NrEGr of rclrt.d prtics rnd descrlption of relationshlp:

Transaction with Related P Rs.in Lakhs

,1.68

0.98

RUN

l.Mr.Umesh V. Katti Chairman

2.Mr.Nikhil Katti Managing Director

3.Mr.Mallikarjun Pujar Director

4.Mr.Lava Katti Director

5.Mr.Kush Katti Director

6.Mrs.Sheela U Katti Spouse ol'Chairman

T.Mrs.Sneha Patil Comoany Secretary

8.Mr.Sheshagiri Kulkami Chief Financial OlIcer

Companies in which KMP or their r€lative have

significsnt influence

l.U R Acrofresh Privatc Limitcd

2.Mshu'araj lnliastructure Pri\ate Limited

3.LrK 27 Hospitality Services (lndia) Limited

4-vishwarai Develope6

Amount (as at March 31,2018Namc of Relflted Pertv Nature of Trunsaction

36.00l.Mr.Nikhil Kani Directors Rcmuncration

9.002.Mr.Mallikarjun Pujar Directors Rcmun!'ration

Directors Remuneration 24.003.Mr.Lava Katti

Directors Remuncration 24.004.Mr.Kush Katti

5.Mrs.Sneha Patil Salary 4.20

6.Mr.Sheshasiri Kulkami Salan

l.Mr.Nikhil Katti Cane Purchss€ 0.86

2.Mr.Mallikariun Puiar Cane Purchase 0.33

lMr.Lava Kalli Cane Purchase 2.t6

4.Mr.Kush Katti (lane Purchasc 22.39

5.Mr.Umesh V. Katti ('ane Purchase

6.Mr. Basavara.i V llagaragi Cane Purchase

LNilfiil LI Katri Cane Puchase Advame

2.l,ava R Katti Cane Purchase Advance s2.47

3.Kush R Katti Canc Purchasc Advancc 57 .24

4.Mr.Mallikarjun Pujar Advances

I .Mr.Nikhil Katti Lease security Deposit 200.00

M.N0.020227

riN o. c009ais

Sl.itvAt\,to6GA

n

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their relatives

Enterpdse haling significant influence over the entily

26.28

40_'78



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

a

A. Disclosure of Sisnificant Accountins Policies:

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The separate financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material

aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 (th€ "Act") as per Companies (lndian Accounting Standmds (Ind AS)) Rules,

2015 and other relevant provisions ofthe Act and rules framed thereunder.

The financial statements up to year ended 3l March 2017 were prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the

Act read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4 (lndian

GAAP).

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention

and accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value and plan assets towards defined benefit plans, which are measured at fair value

(b) Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are valued in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting

Standards (lnd-AS) on Valuation of Inventories.
: tr---- ---.---:-r- .-_.r_ o, r.\r_,.--:-_l. I\a\,I_l I latCl ltll !, Otulq5, OPi{9 ParlS (.L \-tlglllluals i1l E VillUg(l aL l;U)I..

ii. Finished goods are valued at cost / Net Realizable Value whichever less is.

According to the information providcd by'managcment Avcragc salc ratc isRs.

3511/- and cost of production isRs.3,37ll.00 Hence lower of the both i.e cost is

taken for valuation offinished good i.e frees Sugar.

iii. Stock in process is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
iv. Waste is valued at net realizable value.

v. By proriuct is vaiued at net reaiizable vaiue.

vi. Cost of inventories is ascertained on FIFO basis.

B. Subsequent Events after Balance Sheet date:
The Company has taken steps to expansion of project and the company is in the process

of complying with the required compliance under the various statutes.

Prio r Period ltem :

(lompary is following principles of said Standard in pre-senting profit or loss from

ordinary activities. extraordinary items and prior period items in the statement of profit

and loss, in accounting for changes in accounting estimates, disclosure of
4

M Nc 02C227

FRN No Crr'4 '

RU

C

changes in accounting policies

(

43. NOTES TORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS AND BALANCE SHEET AS ON

31.03.2018

These are the first lnd AS financial statements of the Company. Refer note 39 for
understanding the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS and its effect on the

Company's balance sheet, financial performance and cash flows.



VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

During the year under audit following prior period items are accounted in current

year. due to which the company's profits are understated by amount Rs. 7,79.80.2991

D. Recoenition of Income and Expenditure:
Income & Expenditures are recognized and accounted on accrual basis.

iv. The old outstanding balance of the creditor have been written off and taken as

income during the year as time limit for the recovery is barred.

E. Property. Plant & Eouioments :

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and

equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items.

Subsequent cosl are irrcluded in the asset's carrying arnount or recognized as a

separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that futwe economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount olany component accounted for as a separate

asset is derecogrised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are

charged to profit or ioss riuring the reponing period in which they are incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value

ofall of its property. plant and eouioment recognised as at 01 Aoril 2016 measured as

per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,

plant and equipment.

UR

M.H0.0202I

titi No. (rcC9j

SI t\'O. Nature of Expenses Amount Effect on Profit
1 Cane Bill 2013-14 7.79.80"299/- Decrease

("

t

ii. Sugarcane 'Fair & Remunerative Price' fixed by the central govemment is

Rs.2,7781- per M.T Ex-factory for the season 2017-18, where as the said factory

has paid Rs.2500.00 per M.T Ex field price for sugarcane and Transport &
Harvesting amounts to Rs.715.00 average per M.T which is mtually paid. llcncc

the total payment amounts to Rs. 3215,00 per M.T, thus FRP is fully paid.

iii. Sales have been stated exclusive ol Excise Duty/GST.

Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under Capital work in progress and

are stated at cost comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

strvlrocL /.



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

F. Other intansible assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or

disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On ransition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value

of all of its intangible assets recognised as at I April 2016 measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible

assets.However company does not have intangible assets.

Method of Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided under the straight line method over the useful lives of
assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Act.

ii Uost of ieasehoid improvements ls amortlsed over the penod of the lease or lts
useful life, u,hichever is lower.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the

asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

G. Valuation of Investments:

Investments are classified into Cunent and long-term investments. Current

investrnents are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Long-term investments are

stated at cost. Provision for tliminutkn in the value of Long-Term investments is

made only if such a decline is other than temporary.

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to evaluate whether there is any

indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing

impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash in{lows fiom
continuing use that me largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. Ilany such indication exists,

an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asseVcash generating unit is made.

Assets whose canying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to
their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash

generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present

value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an

asset ard from its disposal at the end of its usef,rl life. A previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value
that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation ifthere

[,] No.0].' ,'
L
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H. Imoairment of non-financial assets :
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VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES TIMITED

I. Equity inyestments:

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS i09, Financial Instruments, are

measured at lair value. For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present the subsequent fair value changes in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI). The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The

classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, cven on sale of
investment.

Equity instnrments included within the FVTPL (fair value through profit and loss)
category are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the
profit or loss.

J. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
other short-term, highly liquid investrnents maturing within 90 days from the date of
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash aad are subject to an insignificant risk ofchanges in value

K. Recoqnition of Income

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the

fair value of the consideration reoeived or receivable excluding taxes or duties

collected on behalfofthe govemment and reduced by any rebates and trade discount

aiiowed.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before income is

recognised.

ii. Revenue from salc of power is rccogniscd upon dcposit of units of gcncratcd
power at the grid ofthe purchasing electricity company.

iii. Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected lile of the financial asset to the gross

carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effectivc intercst ratc,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
established.

ividend is

rRN No. 0009415

SHIVAMOGGA

tv

ed,t iro
1?

t

i. lncome is recognised on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses

and liabilities.

M No 020227 <J



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L. Emnlovees Benefits :

Provid t fund:
The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the

provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the

Company make monthly contributions at a specified Dercentase of the covered

employees' salary (cunently 12Yo of employees' salary). The Contributions as

specified under the law are paid to respecti\€ Regional Provident Fund

Commissioner. The Company is liable for annual contributions and recognizes such

contributions as an expense in the year incurred. The Company has categorised its

Provident Fund as a defined contribution plan since it has no further obligations

beyond these contributions and such contribution is charged to Statement of Profit &
Loss,

ii. Gratuitv:
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan

covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested

employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment ofan amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed

year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. (iratuity

payment is accounted for on accrual basis as per actuarial valuation. However such

Gratuity amount is not deposited in any Gratuity Fund Account.

M. Bo rrowins Cost:

Interest and other borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
qualifring assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying assets

is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use.

Other interest and borrowing costs are charged to revenue. During the Financial Year
2017-18 the Company has not capitalized any Borrowing Cost.

Defened Tax Assets & Liabilities have been disclosed separate heading in the
Balance Sheet of the Company, separately from current assets & cunent liabilities.
Deferred Tax has been provided on time difference arising out of excess depreciation as
per Income Tax and accumulated disallowances u/s 43B of tncome Tax Act. 1961 for the
year 2017-18,

The Break-up of Deferred Tax Assets, Deferred Tax Liability & Deferred Tax

t.

,

Sl. No. Particulars Amount
I

I Depreciation as per Income Tax

2 Less: Depreciation as per Books 13,19,96,304.86

Excess Depreciation as per Income Tax(I) 12,541*,p.s.tt

' M.N0.020':l'

FRN fi ""r.61

N. Taxation:

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

25,86,38,830.00

tl
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VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

s

II Deferred Tax Assetst

1 Disallowed u/s 43B NIL

Total (II) NIL

III
IV

Net Deferred Tax Liability (I-II)

Deferred Tax for accounting (33.06%)

12,66,42,.525.14

4,18,68,019.00

The Company has provided current tax provision ofRs. 21,18,801.00 as per MAT
provision as per Income tax Act, 1961.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a resutt of a past everTt, it is probabte that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from
past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occwrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe
Company. Such liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to the financial' statements.

No disclosure is made if the possibility of an outflow on this account is remote.

UR

12.00

M.N0.0202?7

FRN No. [i .qi,:

Sl.No Particulars
Amount
in Lakhs

I High Court, Karnataka, Appeal for Purchase Tax 290.05

2 Central Excise, Belgaum Show Cause Notice 88. r6

3 Central Excise, Bangalore (Appeals) 637.16

4 Central Excise. Mysore (Appeals) 238.29

5 Bank oflndia, Shahapur Branch, Belgaum Bank Gaurantee (The Gor.t of
Kamataka, Excise Department)

45.00

6

7 Bank of India, Shahapur Branch, Belgaum Bank Gaurantee (Chief Engineer (Ele)

SLDC, KPTCL Bangalore)
8.78

8 Bank oflndia, Shahapur Branch, Belgaum Bank Gaurantee (Puducherry Distillery
Ltd)

40.00

Total lJs9.44

(*

O. Provisions and Contineent liabilities:

Bank of India, Shahapur Branch, Belgaum Bank Gauantee (Kamataka State

Pollution Control Board)



VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Company have Total MAT Credit ofRs.23,55,45,227.00 for the year ended 31.03.2018,

accumulated up to date MAT Credit as under:

Sl. No. Financial Year
MAT Credit

Amount

t 2003-04 60.685.00

2 2004-05 6,28,965.00

3 2006-07 79,39,145.00

4 2008-09 2,52,06,166.00

2010-1 I 3,24,39,686.00

6 20tt-12 4,23,14,183.00

7

2013-14 4,62,66,685.00

9 2014-15

l0 2015- l6

ll 2016-17

t2 2017-18 2l,18,801.00

Total 23,,55,45,227.00

2012-13 4,06,40,140.00

2. Accountinq for Excise Dutv:

(a) The Excise duty/GST paid on purchase of Raw-material has been treated as cost of
stock and cost of Raw-materials.

(b) The Cenvat/GST benefit attributable to acquisition of fixed Assets (other than civil
works) is netted against the cost of fixed Assets in accordance with guidance note
issued by ICAI and no depreciation is claimed on that part of Assets.

(c) Cenvat/GST benefit attributable to purchase of inputs has been reduced from
Manufacturing expeses.

UR (,.,

Other notes

l. Minimum Alternative Tax:

5

,9

4,I 2,820.00

1,42,99,510.00

2,32,18,441.00

ta



VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

During the year the Company has availed the Cenvat/GST Credit and utilized as under.

st.

No.
Particulars

Op. Balance

(Dr.)
Credit Debit

CL Balance

(Dr)

I Capital Goods 10,54,148.00 I,70,43,089.00

2 E. Cess on CG 3,53,518.44 3.53.518.44

J SH. Cess on CG 1,76,718.72

Addl. Duty 2.64.62.540.00

Total Capital Goods 1,80,41,889.16 2,70,48,125.00 2,75,16,688.00 1,75,73,326.16

5 Input Goods 90,24,s33.51 72,46,980.00 58.49.529.51 1.04,21.984.00

6 E. Cess on IG 2,2s,729.00 2.25,729.00

7 SH. Cess on IG 1,12.860.00 I ,12,860.00

Total Input Goods 93,63,122.51 72,46,980.00 58,49,529.51 1,07,60,573.00

8 Service

Cenvat

36,36,463.96 19,66,044.00 56,02,507.96

9 E. Cess on ST 74,734.00 74,734.00

37.388.00

Sen'iceTar 37,4E,585.96 19,66,044.00 57,14,629.96

Transfer from

Cenvat

Account

Credit Debit

ll CCST CREDIT 6,38,33.288.00

t2 3,23,3 16.00

IGST CREDIT 1 ,47 ,73,927 .72 5,53.597.00

Total GST Credit 9,97,08,891.00

3,,27,50,,683.72 6,77,49373.72

6,.17,10,201.00

(Shown in the Balance Sheet under Schedule No.l I )
3. Secured Loans:

As on 31.03.2018, the Term Loan under SEFASU Scheme -2014 outstanding as under

l. Bank oflndi4 Shahapur Branch, Belagavi Rs.356.00 Lakhs

2. The B D C C Bank Ltd, Main Branch Belagavi Rs.609.16 Lakhs

As on 3 1.03.2018, the Term Loan For Sugar Export outstanding as under

I . The B D C C Bank Ltd. Main Branch Belasavi Rs.4.000.00 Lakhs

UR &

'1

M.No.020221 \ '
tRti No 00C!4

Transfer to

CGST

Account

1,74,96,059.00 6,01,178.00

I,76,718.72

15,s93.00 2.64,46.947.00

Tax

l0 SH. Cess on ST 37,388.00

Total

Cenvat

GST CREDIT
Cl. Balance

(Dr')

9,97,08,891 .00 72,45,112.00 4,31,20,715.00

SGST CREDIT 1,01,78,047.00 98,54,731.00

13 t,53,27,524.72

a &v



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The Working Capital Loan in the form of Cash Credit from Bank of India & State

Bank of India Cash Credit was secured by pledge of Sugar. The Loan outstanding as on

31.03.2018 is as under.

l. Bank of India, Shahapur Branch, Belagavi Rs.7,747.55 Lakhs

2. State Bank of India. SME Branch. Belagavi Rs.9.220.22 Lakhs

The Term Hypothecation Loan Details:

1 Boiero iviaxi Truck

6,15

bTJLL I'ANK t,t,

Itrc 'l errn Hypotreeatiorr Loi[r is seeured b, respeetirc Hypotheoalion of Vehicles.

The Term Loan Installments due during next 12 months have been included under

Otber Cunent Liabi.lities (Note no.2-s)-

Sl. No.

I

Particulars

Statutory Audit Fees

2017-18

5.00.000.00

) For Other Matters

The above Remuneration is exclusive ofGST

5. Corporate Social Responsibilitv (CSR) Exnenditure:
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year[Rs.'12.41 rt.akhs

b) Amount s ent duri the ear 2017-18: Rs.in Lakhs)

2018 2017

Yet to be Psid

in Cash

?1 80

Yet to be Peid in

Cash

NII,

SI.NO PARTICULARS ' in Lekhs LENDING RANKS

5.53 State Bank of IndiaI Bolero

Bolero Champer 4.80 State Bank of India

Bolero Maxi Truck BDCC Bank BB

6 Case 770 Ex Loader BDCC Bank BB

- 
1 . ConstructiorVacquisition of assets NIL NIL NIL NIL

€. Purposcs other than (l)ahove I t+,tS NIL

I No. Particulars Unit a\t I t-lo I 2016-17 |

30,0110

35,000 35.000

c)

Uli

' M. 0.020217

FRt{ No. m$li

a) Licensed Capacity Rectified Spirit Ltrs 35.000 35.000

Installed Capacity Rectified Spirit Ltrs 35.000 35.000

Licensed Capacity Neutral Spirit i 30,000I rs

d) Ltrs 30.000 30.000

d Acc

a

4. Auditors Remuneration:

2016.17

5.00.000.00

2,00,000.00 2.00.000.00

6. i) Distillery Unit:

b)

Installed Capacity Neutal Spirit

IEM (Part-A)Capmity Ltrs

2

1 .Ashok t evtrand BDCC Bank BB

t.>u

5 2.50

9.89

SHlVAt406 i:}..
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VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2017-t8 2016-17

a) Licensed Capacity Electricity MW 36.4 36.4

b) Installed Capacity Electricity MW 36.4

IEM (Part-A) Capacity MW 66.4

ii) Co-generation Unit:

iii) Sugar Unit:

iv) IML Unit:

No. Particulars Unit 2017-18 2016-11

a) Licensed IML Bottling CB 5,800 5,800

b) Installcd IML Bottling CB 5,800 5,800

v,) Natural Alcoholic Vinegar:

No. Particulars Unit 20t 7-18 2016-11

a) I-icensed 75.000 7s.000

b) Installed Ltrs 75.000 7s,000

Note: The Installed capacity is certiJied by a Director and being a technical matter

same is accepted by the Auditors without verification.

7. Production:

921 8. r 50

Particulars Unit 2017-18 2016-17

a) MT 8500 8.500

b) Installed Capacity Sugar Cane MT 8,s00

c) IEM (Part-A) Capacity TCD I 1.000

2017-18

Particulars Qt"Y Qty

Distillery Unit

Rectified Spirit 883 8.1 8

Extra Nautral Spirit 1192.62 2269.08

M. G. Spirit 89.27

Compost Bags 85.696.00

Compost MT 13.600.00

Co-generation Unit

Electriciw KWh 5,88,37.700

Sugar Unit

7,34,0s0.00 3,2 r ,700.00
Molasses MT 46,543.00 15.500.00

/

No. Particulars Unit

36.4

c) 66.4

No.

Licensed Capacity Sugar Cane

8,500

I 1.000

Ltrs

2016-17
Unit

KL 5563.s0

KL

Kt_ 47.63

1,37,305

5,57,93,s00

Sugar Qtls

(",
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VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MT I,43,842.00 91,960.00

IML Unit

IML (Liquor) VSIL CB 2,35,750.00

Natural Alcoholic Vinegar Unit

Vinegar Ltrs

Particulars

2017-18 2016-17

Unit Qty
Value

in Lakhs
Qty

Value

in Lakhs

Rectified Spirit KL 8 I 2 I 0 6886.00 2.547.26

Extra Natural Spirit KL 1450.00 844.47

M G Spirit 50.00 13.00 90.00 30.50

Liquid Carbon Di Oxide KG 30,15.080.00 30.l5 34,57,620.00 69.15

Co-Gen Unit

3.27,77,000 3,85,14,500 1702.55

Boiler Ash MT 5.77 4.46

Sugar LInit

Sugar QTLS 4,89,861.00 6,63,526.00 21,310.55

Scrap 53.23 6.30

Compost 1,3 7,305.00 162.97

IML Unit

IML (vS[) 4763.59 2.48.700 4,854.11

Notural Alcoholic Vinegar

Vinegar Ltrs 1257.58 s 1,61,600.00 713.99

Total 25,928.30 32,184.21

Particulars Unit
2016-t7

Qty
Value

in Lakhs
Qty

Distillery Unit

Molasses MT 40.588.65 1,220.73 33.366.60 2,001.99

Chemicals 25.11 21.36

R.S. (Captive) KL | 1.206.7s 217.21 954.46

N.S. (Captive) KL 926.00 13 I .40 929.00

Co-generation Unit

Bagasse MT 1.39.974.00 1.08.994.00 2.1 79.88

MT 714.52 13,260.32 637.85

4*

8. Turnover

9. Consumntion of Raw Materials:

Bagasse

2,45,742.O0

84,60,314.00 40,98,000.00

Distillerv Unit

I 810.00

35.28

KL

Electricity KWh 1594.86

17,199.73

Bags 85,696.00 100.83

CB 2.29,800

91,79,160.00

t

2017-18

Value

in Lakhs

2,439.63

167.22

2.799.48

Coal 18,444.70

ffir



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES TIMITED

Chemicals 25.68 24.47

Sugar Unit

Sugar Cane 5,06,125.39 13,427.00 3,10,681.40 8.3 87.53

Chemicals 134.78 58.79

IML Unit

4.63 8.94

Vinegar Unit

4.96 4.17

R S Consumption Ltrs 12.20.000.00 194.40 7,00,000.00 126.00

I nit

2017-18 2016-17

Qry-.

Value

in Lakhs
Qt"v

Value

in Lakhs

Distillery Unit

MT 102.65 6.r5 308.25

Rectified Spirit KL 287.4t 129.33 779.22 249.35

ExEa Neutral Spirit KL l3 t .33 61.72 | 2$.30

M. G. Spirit KL 22.10 7.29 22.96

Denatur€ Spirit t9.53 5.27 19.53 5.29

Co-generation Unit

Coal MT 580.19 28.s2 4,603.87 232.44

MT 27.764.08 374.82

Sugar Unit

Sugar Qtls t6.676.42 7,90,358.00 21,466.12

Molasses MT

MT

CB

10,376. l 9 622.57 28,037.190 1261.67

I 1.95

22.12Liquor VSL

9,218. I 5

2,387

18.43

10.71

5.975.00

5,345

Vinegar Unit

Vinegar Ltrs 10,24,100 13 8.25 21,s9,100 323.87

Total

IML Unit

1 l. Closin Stock:

2017-18

Particulars Unit
aty

Value

in Lakhs Qty
Value

in Lakhs

Rectified Spirit KL 161 I .90 53 t .93 287.41

Extra Neutral Spirit KL 397.01 158.80 131.x; 1.72

M No.020tl

? \ .rjva.
4."

10. Openins Stock:
-1

MT

Chemicals

Chemicals

Particulars

Molasses 13.87

109.49

3.44

KI-

Bagasse

4,48,532.00

Compost MT

17,704.72 24,076.00

2016-17

Distillery Unit

129.33



VISHWARAI SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

M. G. Spirit KL 19.66 5.1I 22.10 7.29

Denature Spirit 19.53 5.27 5.27

Molasses (D) MT 102.65 6.15

2149.O0 580.19 28.52MT

Co-generation Unit

Coal

Coal in transit MT

Bagasse MT 3868.00 77.36

Sugar Unit

Sugar Qtls 6,92,721.00 23,351.62 4,48,532.00 16.676.42

Molasses (S) MT 16.433.19 985.99 10,376.19 622.57

Compost MT 15,952.90 319.0s 9,2i 8.15 18.43

IML Unit

Liquor VSIL CB 5,950.00 26.71 2,387.00 10.71

Vinegar Unit

Ltrs

Total

1,63,554 22.07

25,599.19

10.24,100 138.25

17,704.72

fr

?

12. d rt in Fore Cu n

IML Brick Filling Papers

13. Balanc I Sheet abstract is prepared for the year ending and enclosed.

CIF Valuc Export

14. Balancr appearing under the head Sundry Debtors, Creditors, Loans and Advances,
Securec & Unsecured Loans is subject to confirmation, adjustments if any on receipts
and reconciliation of such accounts.

"As per our report of even date"
For, M/s Gojanur & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
NUR : fi)O94lS

No.020l?'

/\*

CIF Value of Import Currency 2017-18 2016-17

Vinegar Chcmical Chargcs EURO 62.574.00

Kasurth Certification Plant Fees USD 4.41 0.00 4200.00

Vinegar Machinery Parts EURO 44.181.00 35,790.00

IML Brick Filling Machinc USD 2.65.000.00

USD 33,862,.50

LISD 69,24,097.62

2017-18 2016-17

Raw Sugar Purchase

Date: 28-08-2018 (CA. G. M. Channappa Setty)
Place: Shivamogga proprietor

M. No: 020227
**+**********it++***** *++********** *******************************+*+****{.+

KL 19.53

115.24

Vinegar
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